
AGENDA

CABINET

Monday, 24th September, 2018, at 10.00 
am

Ask for: Denise Fitch

Darent Room - Sessions House Telephone: Tel: 03000 416090, 
denise.fitch@kent.g
ov.uk

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting.

Webcasting Notice

Please note:  this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s 
internet site – at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the 
meeting is being filmed.

By entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of 
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.  If you do not 
wish to have your image captured, then you should make the Clerk of the meeting aware.

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Introduction/Webcasting 

2. Membership 

3. Declaration of Interests by Member in Items on the Agenda for this meeting 

4. Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 July 2018 (Pages 3 - 4)

5. Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - July 2018 (Pages 5 - 68)

6. Quarterly Performance Report, Quarter 1, 2018/19 (Pages 69 - 118)

7. Motion to Exclude the Press and Public 
That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.



8. Exempt Minute of the meeting held on 16 July 2018 (Pages 119 - 120)

Benjamin Watts
General Counsel
03000 416814

Friday, 14 September 2018



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

CABINET

MINUTES of a meeting of the Cabinet held in the Darent Room - Sessions House on 
Monday, 16 July 2018.

PRESENT: Miss S J Carey, Mrs M E Crabtree (Substitute for Mr J D Simmonds, 
MBE), Mr M C Dance, Mr G K Gibbens, Mr R W Gough, Mrs S V Hohler (Substitute 
for Mr P M Hill, OBE), Mr E E C Hotson, Mr P J Oakford and Mr M Whiting

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs A Beer (Corporate Director Engagement, Organisation 
Design & Development), Mr D Cockburn (Corporate Director Strategic & Corporate 
Services), Mrs B Cooper (Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and Transport), 
Mr M Dunkley CBE (Corporate Director for Children Young People and Education), 
Mr A Scott-Clark (Director of Public Health), Mr D Shipton (Head of Finance (Policy, 
Planning and Strategy)), Ms P Southern (Corporate Director, Adult Social Care and 
Health) and Mr B Watts (General Counsel)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

70. Apologies and Substitutes 
(Item )

Apologies had been received from Mr Carter, Mr Hill and Mr Simmonds.  

71. Introduction/Webcasting 
(Item 1)

Mr Oakford (Vice-Chairman) was in the Chair for this meeting.

Mr Watts (General Counsel) explained that Mr Simmonds was stepping down from 
his role as Cabinet Member for Finance and that Mrs Crabtree was in attendance 
until his successor was announced. 

72. Minutes of the Meetings  held on 26 March 2018 and 25 June 2018 
(Item 3)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held on 26 March and 25 June 2018 
are correctly recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.  

73. Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 
(Item 4)

1. Mrs Crabtree (Deputy Cabinet Member for Finance) introduced this report which 
set out the budget monitoring position 31 May 2018-19 for both revenue and 
capital budgets.  

2. The forecast revenue pressure was £10.730m, after Corporate Director 
adjustments.  This year there had been a request of £0.750m from Adult Health 
and Social Care which would increase the forecast pressure to £11.480m with 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Corporate Director Adjustments.  This was a concern and needed to be managed 
alongside a forecast gap of £15m, for 2019-20.  This was not an unusual situation 
to be in, however it was becoming increasingly difficult to identify savings 
alongside increasing demands and decreasing government grants.  

3. The Council continued to lobby the government to reimburse the shortfall in 
funding for the Asylum Service which had an estimated shortfall in grant income 
of £2.9m.  

RESOLVED that Cabinet: 

i) Note the forecast revenue budget monitoring position for 2018-19 and capital 
budget monitoring position for 2018-19 to 2020-21, and that the forecast 
pressure on the revenue budget needs to be eliminated as we progress 
through the year.

ii) Agree the revenue budget realignment set out in Appendix 4.

iii) Agree the capital budget realignment set out in section 5.

74. Motion to Exclude the Press and Public 
(Item 6)

RESOLVED:  That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 
of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

75. The Education People - update 
(Item 7)

(Open Minute of Exempt Item)

1. Mr Gough and Mr Dunkley updated Members on The Education People company. 

RESOLVED that Cabinet note the update provided. 

Page 4



  

 

By: 
 

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Traded Services, 
Peter Oakford 
Interim Corporate Directors of Finance, Cath Head and Dave Shipton 
Corporate Directors 
 

To: 
 

Corporate Board – 10 September 2018 
CABINET – 24 September 2018 
 

Subject: 
 

REVENUE & CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING - JULY 2018-19  
 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report provides the budget monitoring position up to 30 July 2018-19 for both revenue 
and capital budgets. 

 

1.2 The format of this report is: 

• This covering summary report which provides a high level financial summary and 
highlights only the most significant issues, as determined by Corporate Directors. 

• Appendix 1 – a high level breakdown of the directorate monitoring positions; 

• Appendix 2 – activity information for our highest risk budgets; 

• Appendix 3 – details of the Asylum service forecast and key activity information including 
grant rates compared to actual forecast unit costs; 

• Appendix 4 – Capital Receipts – key activity indicators and budget risk assessment 
monitoring; 

• Appendix 5 – quarterly monitoring of prudential indicators. 
 
 

1.3 Cabinet is asked to note the forecast revenue and capital monitoring position. In the light of 
further government funding reductions in the short to medium term, it is essential that a 
balanced revenue position is achieved in 2018-19, as any residual pressures rolled forward 
into 2019-20 will only compound an already extremely challenging 2019-20 budget position. 
The forecast revenue pressure is £5.131m (with no Corporate Director adjustments this 
month) increasing to £6.726m including roll forwards. Although this is an improvement on last 
month’s forecast of £6.860m (£8.455m including roll forwards)), this position still needs to be 
managed down to at least a balanced position.   

 

1.4 Evidence from previous years indicates that the position improves as the year progresses. 
This is in part due to the delivery of management action, although history suggests that 
managers also have a tendency to be pessimistic with their forecasting, by declaring 
pressures early but holding back on declaring underspending until towards year end. That’s 
not to say that such a significant turnaround can be repeated again this year, especially as 
the risk of non-delivery of savings increases each year due to the aggregated impact of year 
on year reductions and the ability to find new areas in which to make savings are becoming 
fewer. Clearly, much depends on our negotiation with the Home Office, where we will be 
seeking full reimbursement of the costs of supporting unaccompanied asylum seekers and 
care leavers. 

 
1.5 The Budget Monitoring report for June is attached for background information.  This report 

was not sent to Cabinet as there was no Cabinet meeting in August.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

fitchd01
Cross-Out



  

 

1.6 There is a reported variance of -£38.687m on the 2018-19 capital budget (excluding schools 
and PFI).  This is a movement of +£1.757m from the previous report and is made up of 
+£1.097m real movement and +£0.660m rephasing movement.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 Note the forecast revenue budget monitoring position for 2018-19 and capital budget 

monitoring position for 2018-19 to 2020-21, and that the forecast pressure on the revenue 
budget needs to be eliminated as we progress through the year. 

 
3.  SUMMARISED REVENUE MONITORING POSITION 
 

3.1 Overall the net projected revenue variance for the Council as reported by budget managers 
is a pressure of £5.131m.  After allowing for roll forwards the position increases to £6.726m.  
This forecast position, after roll forward requirements, represents a movement of -£1.729m 
from the June monitoring position. The main reasons for the movement this month are 
provided in section 3.3 below.  

 
In total, this position reflects that we are on track to deliver the majority of the £50.2m of 
savings included in the approved budget for this year, but further work is urgently required 
to identify options to eliminate the residual £6.726m forecast pressure. The position by 
directorate, together with the movement from the last report, is shown in table 1a & 1b 
below. 

Page 6



  

 

3. Table 1:  Directorate revenue position

 

Budget

Net 

Forecast 

Variance *

Corporate 

Director 

Adjustment

Revised Net 

Variance

Last 

Reported 

Position

Movement

£m £m £m £m £m £m

35.114 -3.117 -3.117 -4.379 1.262

229.462 3.201 3.201 4.821 -1.620

153.549 -0.578 -0.578 -0.909 0.331

418.124 -0.493 0.000 -0.493 -0.467 -0.026

2.270 1.070 1.070 1.061 0.009

37.7369 3.705 3.705 4.135 -0.430

2.958 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

18.060 -0.940 -0.940 -0.942 0.002

125.027 2.384 2.384 2.453 -0.068

186.052 6.219 0 6.219 6.707 -0.488

0.662 0.581 0.581 0.204 0.377

4.635 -0.050 -0.050 0.063 -0.113

140.859 -0.543 -0.543 0.255 -0.798

14.609 0.577 0.577 0.801 -0.224

9.413 -0.185 -0.185 0.048 -0.232

170.178 0.381 0.381 1.370 -0.990

-2.151 -0.008 -0.008 -0.007 -0.001

15.520 0.587 0.587 0.722 -0.135

11.092 -0.122 -0.122 -0.007 -0.116

5.014 0.000 0.000 0.066 -0.066

38.707 0.780 0.780 0.700 0.080

8.098 -0.006 -0.006 -0.001 -0.005

1.773 0.071 0.071 0.053 0.019

-3.304 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

74.748 1.302 0 1.302 1.527 -0.225

114.782 -2.277 -2.277 -2.277 0.000

963.884 5.131 0.000 5.131 6.860 -1.729

0 8.517 8.517 4.520 3.998

963.884 13.648 0 13.648 11.379 2.269

Strategy, Policy, Relationships & 

Corporate Assurance

Business Services Centre

Specialist Children's Services

Total Children, Young People & 

Education

Sub Total Strategic & Corporate 

Services

Financing Items & Unallocated

Schools (CYPE Directorate)

TOTAL (Excl Schools)

TOTAL

Highways, Transportation & Waste

Environment, Planning & Enforcement

Strategic Management & Directorate 

Budgets (GET)

Economic Development

Libraries, Registration & Archives

General Counsel

Strategic Management & Directorate 

Budgets (CYPE)

Strategic Management & Directorate 

Budgets (ASCH)

Strategic Management & Directorate 

Budgets (S&CS)

Growth, Environment & Transport

Strategic & Corporate Services

Disabled Children, Adult Learning 

Disability & Mental Health

Older People & Physical Disability

Total Adult Social Care & Health

Total Growth, Environment & 

Transport

Engagement, Organisation Design & 

Development

Finance

Directorate

Education Services, Planning & 

Resources

Quality & Standards

Early Help & Preventative Services

Adult Social Care & Health

Children, Young People & Education

Infrastructure

Strategic Commissioning including 

Public Health

Page 7



  

 

 
 

   
 
* the variances reflected in appendix 1 will feature in this column 
 
3.3 Table 1b: Provisional Directorate revenue position after roll forwards: 
 

 
 
3.3.1 The main reasons for the movement of -£1.729m are: 
 

3.3.2     Adult Social Care and Health: 
 

The overall movement for the Directorate forecast variance since the June monitoring is a 
reduction of £0.026m, an explanation of significant movements is detailed below. 

 
3.3.2.1    Strategic Management and Directorate Budgets – Adults 
 

The pressure within Strategic Management and Directorate has increased since June by  
+£1.262m. 

 
+£1.560m of this movement in variance is due to a planned transfer of cash limits (currently 
held against Budget and Saving Plans to be allocated) to fund underlying prior year pressures 
in the services (the contra to this can be seen within ‘Disabled Children, Adult Learning 
Disability & Mental Health’ (see 3.3.2.2)). 
 
A number of ‘Housing Related Support’ contracts have come to an end, contributing to a 
reduction in the variance of -£0.396.  Support for these clients is now being provided through 
‘Learning Disability Community Based Services’ such as ‘Supporting Independence Living’.  
 
A movement of +£0.233m results from a transfer of funds from the Adult’s ‘Out of Hours’ 
(OOH) service to the Central Referral Unit (CRU) due to decreased Adult’s usage (based on 
activity) of the OOH service, and pressures within CRU staffing. 

 
 

Variance from above (excl Schools) 5.131 6.860 -1.729

Roll Forwards - committed 0.000

- re-phased 1.595 1.595 0.000

- bids 0.000

1.595 1.595 0.000

6.726 8.455 -1.729

Total Roll Forward Requirements

(-ve) Uncommitted balance / (+ve) 

Deficit

Variance

Committed Re-phased Bids

£m £m £m £m

-0.493 0.750 0.257

6.219 0.845
7.064

0.381 0.381

1.302 1.302

-2.277 -2.277

5.131 1.595 0.000 0.000 6.726

Children, Young People & 

Education

Growth, Environment & Transport

Strategic & Corporate Services

Financing Items & Unallocated

TOTAL (Excl Schools)

 Directorate

Roll Forwards Revised 

Variance

£m

Adult Social Care & Health

Page 8



  

 

3.3.2.2   Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability and Mental Health 
 

The pressure on Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability & Mental Health has decreased 
by -£1.620m since June. 

 
Most of this decrease in variance relates to the planned transfer of cash limits from Strategic 
Management and Directorate Budgets (see 3.3.2.1); -£0.407m within Mental Health Services, 
-£0.904m against Learning Disabilities 18-25 clients and -£0.102m for Learning Disabilities 
0-18 clients. The remainder of the decrease in variance relates to a decrease in Learning 
Disability 26+ services; -£0.358m within Residential Services and -£0.067m within Supported 
Accommodation. This is partially offset by an increase in ‘Learning Disability 26+ Supported 
Living’ of +£0.316m (related to the cessation of the Housing Related Support Contracts – see 
3.3.2.1). 

 

3.3.2.4    Older People and Physical Disability 
 

The pressure on ‘Older People & Physical Disability’ has increased since June by +£0.331m. 
 
  The main movements in variance relate to a net increase of +£0.651m within ‘Older People - 

Residential Care Services’ predominately due to an increase in activity. This is offset by 
decreases in ‘Older People - Community Based Services’ of -£0.300m due a fall in non-
residential charging income and further decreases in the ‘Discharge to Assess’ Hilton service, 
which is as a result of efficiencies made in a recent contract renegotiation. 

 

3.3.3 Children, Young People and Education Directorate: 
 

 The initial forecast for Children, Young People and Education Directorate indicates an overall 
pressure of £6.219m, of which £2.327m relates to the Asylum service. This variance 
represents a movement of -£0.488m from June monitoring. 

 
The pressure on the Education Psychology Service has reduced by -£0.482m. The forecast 
now assumes a delay in the recruitment of current vacancies until April 2019 due to the 
ongoing difficulties in recruiting psychologists and additional income resulting from the service 
offering limited trading activity to select schools in the 2018-19 academic year.  

 
 For the Asylum Service the current variance represents a movement of -£0.161m from the 

June monitoring position. There is a reduction in pressure on 2016-17 grant shortfall. 
 
 
3.3.4 Growth, Environment & Growth: 
 

The current position is a forecast pressure of +£0.381m, which is a significant improvement 
of -£0.990m from last month’s pressure of +1.370m. 
 
This positive movement follows the identification of a range of one-off management actions, 
which are now forecast against individual budget lines, to mitigate the in-year pressures 
highlighted in the June monitoring report. A residual pressure does still remain and this will 
be reviewed over the coming months with a view to achieving a balanced position by the year-
end.  

 
3.3.4.1    Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets 
 
               The “Budget & Savings Plans to be allocated” key service line has increased by +£0.344m to 

fully reflect the £0.7m of savings that had not been allocated. Compensating management 

Page 9



  

 

actions are now included against individual key service lines and these savings will be re-
allocated as part of the budget build process so that each has a permanent funding source 
going forward. 

 
3.3.4.2    Highways, Transportation & Waste 
       

The biggest reduction this month is in Highways, Transport & Waste Management Costs and 
Commercial Operations of -£0.440m. The largest movement -£0.3m relates to a drawdown 
from a renewals reserve, whereby expenditure had been met from the core budget. Other 
small movements make up the balance including a reduction in legal costs. 
 
Waste Facilities & Recycling Centres has reduced by -£0.154m, with the confirmation of the 
insurance claim for North Farm of -£0.250m being offset by other small movements in other 
areas, including haulage fees. 
 
Subsidised Buses and Community Transport is showing a reduction of -£0.153m following a 
draw down from reserves to match eligible spend.  
 
Highway Asset Management (Roads and Footways) is forecasting an increased pressure of 
+£0.222m primarily due to non-recoverable works, i.e. damage to highway assets where a 
claim to recover costs from a third party is no longer possible. These are unfunded and 
therefore represent a pressure. 

 
3.3.4.3    Environment, Planning & Enforcement 
 

The movement of -£0.208m in the Environment & Planning key service line follows the 
implementation of a range of savings measures across all services within this division, 
including vacancy management/other staff savings, additional income generated/forecast, as 
well as reductions in non-staffing expenditure. 

 
3.3.4.4    Libraries, Registration & Archives 
 

The Libraries, Registration & Archives position has improved by -£0.232m overall, including 
-£0.075m additional release in a renewals reserve (RFID replacement was re-procured at 
beneficial rates and final costs are now confirmed), plus minor savings in records 
management, early retirements etc. 

 
3.3.4.5 Other smaller movements make up the balance of -£0.369m, primarily reductions within            

Highways Asset Management (Other), Economic Development, and Young Person’s Travel 
Pass where forecast activity is currently slightly below budgeted levels. 
 
 

3.3.5 Strategic & Corporate Services: 
  
 The overall forecast for the Strategic and Corporate Services Directorate has decreased by   

-£0.225m since the June monitoring report.  This is mainly due to a movement in Finance of 
-£0.116m due to vacancy management of the staffing budget, and in Engagement, 
Organisation Design & Development of -£0.135m due to the end of consultation and 
commencement of staffing restructures. 

 
Included within the Directorate budget is the Public Health expenditure which is funded from 
a ring-fenced grant.  Although the current forecast outturn for Public Health of -£0.094m 
shows no overall change from the position reported last month, there have been two small 

Page 10



  

 

movements at Key Service level. An increase in “Public Health - Children's Programme” 
resulting from additional infant feeding costs of +£0.077m has been offset by a reduction in 
“Public Health - Healthy Lifestyles” of -£0.076m. In the case of the latter, estimates were made 
at the end of last year for outstanding prescribing costs relating to nicotine replacement 
therapy and long acting reversible contraception; these costs were accounted for last year. 
Actual invoices now received are below the original cost estimates resulting in an underspend 
this year. 

 
 

3.3.6 Financing Items 
 
 There is no movement in the variance of -£2.277 from the June monitoring report. 

 
3.4          Revenue budget monitoring headlines (please refer to Appendix 1) 
 
3.4.1       Adult Social Care and Health 

 
The overall forecast variance for the Directorate is an underspend of -£0.5m and an 
explanation of significant variances are detailed in the paragraphs below.  

 
This variance position reflects activity data to date in the 2018-19 financial year and we will 
continue to refine the forecast alongside activity trends over the remaining months. 
 

3.4.1.1 Strategic Management and Directorate Budgets – Adults 
  

The forecast variance for ‘Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets – Adults’ is an 
underspend of -£3.1m. 
 

• This variance relates mainly to centrally held funds still to be allocated which cover 
pressures already recognised within the forecast position. It includes a -£1.7m 
underspend against sustainability funding, which partially offsets pressures from 
unachievable in year savings of +£0.4m. 

• There is an underspend of -£0.9m within Safeguarding Adults. This underspend primarily 
relates to a planned underspend of -£0.750m on the dedicated piece of work to clear the 
DOLS’ backlog, as the contract will not now commence until October and as this project 
is funded with one off budget, a request is being made to roll forward the underspend to 
2019-20.  

• An underspend of -£1.1m against ‘Strategic Management & Directorate Support’ primarily 
relates to ‘Housing Related Support’ services commissioned for clients with Learning 
Disabilities, where contracts with several providers have come to an end. Support for 
these clients is being provided through ‘Learning Disability Community Based Services’ 
such as ‘Supporting Independence Living’ services. 

 
3.4.1.2 Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability and Mental Health 
 

Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability and Mental Health Services are                       
forecasting a net pressure of +£3.2m. 

 

• +£2.8m of this pressure relates to Learning Disability Community Based Services (18+) 
where there is increasing activity within the Supporting Independent Living Service. The 
cost of growing complexity and increasing client numbers is creating a pressure. This will 
be partially offset by the allocation of centrally held funds in the Strategic Management 
and Directorate Budgets (see 3.4.1.1). 

Page 11



  

 

•  A forecast pressure of +£1.0m reported within services for children with a disability (0-
18), relates to an increase in cost of complex residential placements for young children, 
and is reflecting the full year effect of increases in both activity and the cost of care 
packages in the final quarter of the previous financial year. 

• The +£0.4m pressure on children & young people social care staffing reflects the need 
for the service to maintain low numbers of vacancies and the use of agency to meet the 
current demands for the service. This is offset by lower demand for individual services for 
children in need resulting in a -£0.4m underspend. The pressures on this service are 
expected to continue and will need to be reflected in the 2019-22 MTFP. 

 
3.4.1.3 Older People and Physical Disability 
 

       Older People and Physical Disability services are forecasting a net underspend of -£0.6m, 
which includes several offsetting variances. The most significant variances are detailed 
below. 

 

• Older People (65+) Community Services is reporting an overspend of +£0.8m. This 
position reflects current activity trends in combination with an adjustment built into the 
position for projected future demographic growth. 

• The pressure in Older People (65+) Community Services is offset by a variance of -£0.9m 
against Adaptive & Assistive Technology as efficiencies within the procurement and 
running of this service come into full effect in 2018-19. 

• There is also an underspend forecast of -£0.4m against Assessment Staffing due to staff 
vacancies. 

• The Older People and Physical Disability forecast assumes that there will be also be 
some increased activity over the winter months.  

 
3.4.2 Children, Young People and Education Directorate 
  

The forecast for Children, Young People and Education Directorate indicates an overall 
pressure of £6.2m, of which £2.3m relates to the Asylum service. Tackling Troubled Families 
has achieved additional income of -£0.9m as a result of more successful Payment By Results 
submissions to the MHCLG and is requesting roll forward of this surplus into the next financial 
year in order to ensure there is sufficient funding to maintain this programme in 2019-20. This 
roll forward increases the forecast pressure to £7.1m.  
 
There is a risk in the deliverability of the £2m integration saving in the current year, due to a 
delay in the appointment of senior posts. We are continuing to look at short term options for 
compensating savings to meet the target for 2018-19.  The wider impact of integration is being 
developed to deliver the full saving in 2019-20 through the Change for Kent Children 
Programme. 
 

3.4.2.1 Education Services, Planning & Resources 
 

There are a number of pressures from 2017-18 which are continuing into 2018-19, including: 
 

• a continual shortfall in the recovery of costs for excepted items of +£0.2m such as 
maternity cover, resulting from higher than anticipated demand from schools.  

• ongoing school security costs of +£0.3m; 

• the installation, hire, and removal of mobile classrooms to support the Basic Need 
programme of +£0.8m; 

Page 12



  

 

• +£0.4m revenue maintenance costs associated with schools are expected to be more 
than the grant available. This covers both planned maintenance agreements and 
subsequent resultant work which falls under the Total Facilities Management contracts.  

 
There are also emerging pressures on: 
 

• The Education Psychology Service of +£0.6m, due to increasing statutory workloads 
which is resulting in the continual use of agency staff to cover staff vacancies and the 
need to offer enhanced salary packages to attract and retain permanent staff. In addition, 
as the service focused on meeting its statutory responsibilities, it has had to reduce traded 
activities which led to a shortfall in income; 

• +£0.2m general shortfall in traded income for emergency planning; 

• +£1.3m support of children with Special Education Needs (SEN). The pressure is 
resulting from the increasing provision of therapy services and higher demand for 
statutory assessments, along with additional payments to reflect the greater complexity 
of needs of the pupils placed in our special schools and specialist resource provision; 

 
Where the demands and subsequent financial pressures are expected to continue into 2019-
20, this is being highlighted in the medium-term plan submission. 

 
3.4.2.2    Specialist Children’s Services (excluding Asylum) 
 

 The Specialist Children’s Service is forecasting a breakeven position, however this is formed 
from a number of compensating variances. The Care Leavers Service is forecasting a 
pressure of £0.6m resulting from the need to recruit additional staff and use of agency staff 
to meet the current demand of supporting citizen children.  This also includes the anticipated 
impact of new legislation requiring local authorities to continue to offer support to young 
people up to the age of 25. The impact of this new legislation is expected to be ongoing and 
will increase in future years.  

 
             This pressure is offset by anticipated underspends on the safeguarding service and lower 

unit costs across adoption & special guardianship orders partially resulting from the full year 
effect of the means-testing which was introduced in 2017-18.  

 
3.4.2.3 Specialist Children’s Services – Asylum Seekers: 
  

The pressure on the Asylum Service is expected to continue, with an estimate of +£2.3m 
shortfall in grant income based on a number of assumptions.  The Home Office have recently 
confirmed in a letter to the Leader (dated 18 July 2018) that there has been a delay in 
completing their review of Local Authority funding rates.  As such the Home Office have 
confirmed that whilst the review is ongoing, the current rates we receive will continue to be 
paid.  
 
Negotiations continue with the Home Office to recover the shortfall in funding for this service 
over recent years. 

 
The main variances for the Asylum service are: 

 

• -£0.4m surplus in grant income from supporting under 16 year olds. This is in line with 
previous years and is normally used to offset any shortfalls in grant relating to 16-17 year 
olds and 18+ care leavers.  

• +£0.5m shortfall in grant income for supporting 16-17 year olds. There is still a number of 
children placed in higher cost placements that arrived before the age of 16, which have 

Page 13



  

 

chosen to remain in their current placements. Attempts to move any individual who is 
settled in their placement is likely to result in legal challenge. This pressure is less than 
the previous year as it is assumed new 16-17 year olds will be placed in lower cost 
supported accommodation settings. 

• +£0.7m shortfall in grant income to support the National Transfer Scheme Reception 
Centre. The pressure on this service has increased since 2017-18 as the number of new 
UASC arrivals has reduced leading to a reduction in the total grant received to run this 
service and therefore a greater overall shortfall in funding.  

• +£1.1m shortfall in grant income for supporting care leavers (18+). Historically, the grant 
rate has not been sufficient to recover the costs associated with supporting this age 
group. Work is progressing to ensure care leavers are applying for both job seekers 
allowance and housing benefit where eligible to do so. 

• +£0.4m costs associated with children who are presented to us as Asylum Children that 
are deemed not to be eligible for the Home Office Grant (referred to as ineligible children). 

 
3.4.3       Growth, Environment and Transport 
 

The overall position for the Directorate is a forecast variance of +£0.4m, with +£2.3m of 
pressures being partially offset by forecast underspends of -£1.9m. 

 
3.4.3.1 Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets 
 

The directorate is showing a pressure of +£0.7m against the “Budget & Savings Plans to 
be allocated” budget line, with offsetting management action now being shown against 
individual key services.  
 

3.4.3.2 Environment, Planning & Enforcement 
 
Public Protection is forecasting a pressure of +£0.8m relating primarily to the Coroner’s 
service of +£0.7m but also +£0.2m within Community Wardens following a forecast shortfall 
in income/grant funding.    

 
Within the Coroner Service forecast is a contractual pressure of some +£0.4m (full year 
effect £0.6m) relating to body removals where costs have increased considerably following 
the end of the old contracts and whereby the market was only willing to continue with the 
service at full cost recovery. Options to mitigate this pressure, or deliver the service in a 
different way, are currently being explored but all future options are likely to cost in excess 
of the previous arrangements whereby funeral directors provided this service at a subsidised 
rate but which is no longer commercially viable.  

 
The remaining Coroner’s pressures relate to increasing pathology, post mortem, toxicology 
and body storage costs - due to both a rising population/level of activity and legislative 
changes – partially offset by an increased contribution from Medway, as well as savings 
from within the Medical Examiner budget as this new pilot/service has been delayed. 

 
3.4.3.3 Highways, Transportation and Waste 

 
There is an overall pressure within Waste Facilities & Recycling Centres of +£0.5m despite 
the forecast volume of waste being -9,959 tonnes below budgeted levels (see below for 
explanation). 
 
Increases in Materials Recycling Facilities (MRF) costs since the budget was set has led to 
a pressure of +£0.7m. Reduced paper and card waste income (-6,304 tonnes) has left an 

Page 14



  

 

income shortfall of +£0.3m, whilst additional composted waste of +7,559 tonnes has added 
a further +£0.4m to the forecast meaning a total pressure of +£1.4m. These pressures have 
been partially offset by a reduction of -4,413 tonnes of recycling credits of -£0.3m; the 
insurance settlement for North Farm of -£0.3m; as well as -£0.7m of savings due to the 
current mix of residual waste types (each with their own disposal cost) differing from the 
budgeted levels means total savings/underspends of -£1.3m (meaning net pressure of 
+£0.1m overall). Other minor variances of +£0.4m reconcile back to the +£0.5m overall 
pressure. Further details on activity can be found in Appendix 2.14. 
 
The above pressures are more than offset as Residual Waste is forecasting a significant 
underspend of -£0.9m. Of this -£0.7m is due to a predicted volume variance of -6,518 tonnes 
across Waste to Energy and Waste Treatment Final Disposal contracts (see Appendix 2.13). 
An additional -£0.2m of trade waste income is also being forecast.  
 
Highway Asset Management (Roads and Footways) is now forecasting a pressure of 
+£0.2m against non-recoverable works as mentioned in paragraph 3.3.4.2. However, this 
pressure is offset by an underspend of -£0.2m within Highway Asset Management (Other) 
through additional income for street permits and other savings. 
 
The Highways, Transport & Waste Management Costs and Commercial Operations is now 
reporting a breakeven position as the previous pressures against staffing, non-staffing 
(including legal) and reduced income forecasts have been offset by the management action 
described in paragraphs 3.3.4.3 and 3.3.4.4. 
 
Other minor variances add up to a further -£0.3m underspend; these are primarily 
Subsidised Buses and Community Transport and Young Person's Travel Pass which is 
based on current levels of forecast activity and may be subject to change for the remainder 
of the year. 

 
3.4.3.4 Underspends against Environment & Planning of -£0.2m and Libraries, Registration & 

Archives of -£0.2m result from the management actions and changes referred to above. 
 

3.4.3.5 The improved position has been achieved primarily through one-off savings meaning that a 
permanent solution to the £0.7m of unallocated savings plans is yet to be found. This will be 
re-aligned/delivered as part of the MTFP process. 

 
 The directorate remains committed to achieving a balanced position overall by the year-end, 

with further areas for management action being identified and implemented in subsequent 
months. The directorate does, however, have a significant number of activity led budgets 
and therefore there is the potential for further movements in the remainder of the year. 

 
3.4.4       Strategic and Corporate Services 

 
  The overall variance reflected in Appendix 1 for the directorate is a pressure of +£1.3m which 

includes variances of +0.6m for EODD, +£0.8m for Infrastructure and -£0.1m for Finance.   
 

3.4.4.1      Engagement, Organisation Design and Development (EODD) 
  
The +0.6m pressure in EODD is made up of +£0.4m relating to the Contact Centre & Digital 
Web Services budget set in 2015 using a transformation plan suggested by Agilisys, 
predicting that the number of calls and average call duration would fall significantly. Although 
the call volumes and times have reduced, this is not in line with the original budgeted plan, 
hence resulting in a budget pressure. The commissioners of this service, together with 

Page 15



  

 

Agilisys, are working with directorate services to get these figures reduced further. Strategic 
Commissioning and Agilisys are also working together on changes to the contract which will 
further mitigate the position before the end of the financial year. The remainder of the 
divisional variance, +£0.2m, relates to staffing overspends due to re-phased plans for 
restructuring. The Division is currently working on management action to mitigate this 
position. 

 
3.4.4.2     Finance 
 

The variance for the Finance division of -£0.1m is due in the main to staffing budget vacancy 
management. 

 
3.4.4.3 Infrastructure 

 
For the Infrastructure budgets the variance of +£0.8m is largely due to Property related 
services, within which the largest single variance is a forecast pressure of +£0.2m for 
Oakwood House where income is expected to be below budget. The service is working on 
potential strategies to improve the situation going forward.  There is a variance of +£0.1m on 
Education legal fees, where a change in accounting treatment relating to the use of capital 
grant funding on this demand led budget, has created this pressure. The Corporate Landlord 
variance is +£0.3m which, like the remainder of the Infrastructure variance, is made up of 
many smaller variances all individually under £0.1m. The commissioner and Gen2 are 
looking at ways of delivering savings to compensate for this position. 
 

3.4.4.4 Strategic Commissioning including Public Health 
 
Overall Public Health is forecasting a small underspend of -£0.1m which will be transferred 
to the ring-fenced reserve. Several Key Service budget lines are showing variances of more 
than £0.1m which require explanation.  
 
“Public Health - Children's Programme” is forecasting a pressure of +£0.4m. This results 
primarily from school health continence costs of +£0.1m, infant feeding of +£0.1m, and oral 
health of +£0.1m. The latter is offset by an underspend within “Public Health - Advice and 
Other Staffing” as the budget for oral health remains on that line. Other minor variances 
make up the remaining balance of +£0.1m. 
 
The Public Health - Sexual Health budget is reporting a pressure of +£0.2m resulting from 
increased contraceptive costs.   
 
The pressures above are largely offset by an underspend of -£0.5m “Public Health - Advice 
and Other Staffing”; in part this relates to oral health as stated above of -£0.1m as well as 
underspends against campaigns of -£0.3m and workforce development of -£0.1m. 
 
A -£0.2m underspend against “Public Health - Healthy Lifestyles” results from lower 
prescribing costs from 2017-18 as explained in paragraph 3.3.5, as well as other small 
variances. 

 
3.4.5      Financing Items  
 

A £2.3m underspend reflects additional retained Business Rates levy for 2017-18 above the 
debtor raised and the S31 grant reconciliation for 2017-18.  Exact figures will not be known 
until the autumn. 

 

Page 16



  

 

 
3.5 Schools delegated budgets: 
 
 The schools delegated budget reserves are currently forecast to end the financial year in 

surplus by £21.5m, compared to £30.0m at the start of the financial year.  This is made up of 
a forecast surplus of £31.8m on individual maintained school balances, a surplus of £0.9m 
on the schools apprenticeship levy reserve and a deficit on the central schools reserve of 
£11.1m.  The table below provides the detailed movements on each reserve: 

 

 

Individual 
School 
Reserves 
(£m) 

Central 
Schools 
Reserve 
(£m) 

Apprenticeship 
Levy Reserve 
(£m) 

Total School 
Reserves 
(£m) 

Balance bfwd 31.315 (2.155) 0.855 30.015 

Forecast movement in reserves: 

Academy conversions and 
closing school deficits 0.465 (1.200)   (1.735) 

Contribution to capital 
broadband   (1.000)   (1.000) 

School Growth   4.372   4.372 

High Needs   (9.520)   (9.520) 

Various   0.408   0.408 

Overspend on Central DSG 
budgets   (2.013)   (2.013) 

Forecast reserve balance 31.780 (11.108) 0.855 21.527 

Note: a negative figure indicates a draw down from reserves/deficit 
 
The Schools’ delegated budget is currently showing a pressure of £8.5m. 

  
3.6 Table 2: Performance of our wholly owned companies 
 

 
 
 
4. REVENUE BUDGET VIREMENTS/CHANGES TO BUDGETS 
 

4.1 All changes to cash limits are in accordance with the virement rules contained within the 
constitution, with the exception of those cash limit adjustments which are considered 
“technical adjustments” i.e. where there is no change in policy, including the allocation of 
grants and previously unallocated budgets where further information regarding allocations 
and spending plans has become available since the budget setting process.  

   
5. SUMMARISED CAPITAL MONITORING POSITION 
 

5.1 There is a reported variance of -£38.687m on the 2018-19 capital budget (excluding schools 
and PFI). This is a movement of +£1.757m from the previous report and is made up of 
+£1.097m real movement and +£0.660m rephasing movement. Headline movements are 
detailed below by Directorate. 

 
 
 

Dividends/Contributions (£m) Budget Forecast From trading surplus from reserves

Commercial Services 4.400 4.400 4.400

GEN2 0.983 0.983 0.983

Page 17



  

 

5.2 Table 3: Directorate capital position 

 
 
5.3 Capital budget monitoring headlines  
 

The real variances over £0.100m and rephasing variances over £1.000m are as follows:
  

5.3.1 Children, Young People and Education 
 

• Modernisation Programme: Rephasing movement of -£1.175m.  The proposed 2018-19 
Modernisation programme was approved by KCC in July 2018-19, which is seven months 
later than is required to deliver all schemes within the financial year, and subsequently 
there is a requirement to rephase some costs from 2018-19 to 2019-20. 
 

• Basic Need: Rephasing movement of +£5.900m.  This is due to several major secondary 
school expansions running ahead of programme. In addition, two significant schemes in 
Dartford and Sevenoaks achieved planning permission in July. 

 

• Special Provision Fund: Real movement of +£2.193m.  Following a cash limit adjustment 
as requested in the May monitoring report, this has created a movement. 

 
5.3.2     Adult, Social Care & Health 

 
There are no movements reported over £0.100m on real variances or over £1.0m on 
rephasing. 
  

5.3.3     Growth, Environment & Transport 

5.3.3.1   Highways, Transportation & Waste 

• Highway Major Enhancement: Real movement of -£2.054m.  This is mainly due to the 
change in cash limit reflected as per the June monitoring, to reflect additional £2.1m 
agreed by County Council for potholes, which will be funded from revenue reserves. 
 

• Integrated Transport:  Real movement of +£0.266m. This reflects schemes each below 
£1.000m which are to be funded from developer contributions and external funding. 
 

• Waste Compactors: Real movement of +£0.335m.  Replacement of five compactors is 
required this year and will be funded from a revenue contribution. 

 
 
 
 

Page 18



  

 

5.3.3.2   Environment, Planning and Enforcement and Libraries, Registration and Archives 
 

• Coroners Phase 2: Rephasing movement of -£1.684m.  The figures reflect the project plan 
which shows the design phase will go up to the end of this financial year.  Construction is 
due to start April 2019, and is expected to last approximately six months. 

 
5.3.3.3   Economic Development 
 

• Kent Empty Property Initiative – No Use Empty: Real movement of +£0.300m.  This relates 
to additional external funding from Shepway District Council and Dover District Council to 
top up the loans. 

 
 
5.3.4      Strategic & Corporate Services 
 

There are no movements reported over £0.100m on real variances or over £1.0m on rephasing. 
 
6. CONCLUSIONS 

 

6.1 It is not unusual at this point in the financial year for the revenue position to show an 
overspend. However, the forecasts show the majority of the £50.2m savings are on track to 
be delivered and the intention remains that where delivery proves to be unlikely, equivalent 
savings elsewhere within the relevant Directorate will be made as appropriate.  It is clear that  
plans still need to be put in place to reduce the forecast pressure. Considering there is still a 
forecast pressure of £6.726m (including roll forwards), of which the majority falls within the 
Children, Young People and Education directorate, there will need to be a range of potential 
mitigations in order to reduce and then eliminate this forecast pressure. We cannot, under 
any circumstances, afford to enter 2019-20 with an underlying problem. 

 
7. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Cabinet is asked to: 
 

7.1 Note the forecast revenue budget monitoring position for 2018-19 and capital budget 
monitoring position for 2018-19 to 2020-21, and that the forecast pressure on the revenue 
budget needs to be eliminated as we progress through the year. 

 
 
 
8. CONTACT DETAILS 
 

Head of 
Finance 
(Operations) 
 
 
Head of 
Finance 
(Policy, 
Planning & 
Strategy: 

Cath Head 
Head of Finance (Operations) 
03000 416934 
Cath.Head@kent.gov.uk 
 
Dave Shipton 
Head of Finance (Policy, Planning & Strategy  
03000 419418 
dave.shipton@kent.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 19

mailto:Cath.Head@kent.gov.uk
mailto:dave.shipton@kent.gov.uk


  

 

Report 
Authors: 

Emma Feakins 
Chief Accountant 
03000 416082 
 emma.feakins@kent.gov.uk 
 

 Jo Lee/Julie Samson 
Capital Finance Manager 
03000 416939 / 03000 416950 
joanna.lee@kent.gov.uk 
julie.samson@kent.gov.uk 
 

Page 20

mailto:emma.feakins@kent.gov.uk
mailto:joanna.lee@kent.gov.uk
mailto:julie.samson@kent.gov.uk


  

 

Appendix 1 
 

Breakdown of Directorate Monitoring Position 
 

 
   

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets - Adults

Additional Adult Social Care Allocation 6.1 0.0 6.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Budgets and Savings Plans to be allocated (ASCH) -1.1 -0.5 -1.6 -1.2 0.0 -1.2 1.6

Safeguarding Adults 3.9 -0.2 3.7 -0.9 0.0 -0.9 -0.1

Community Based Preventative Services - Other Adults 0.6 -0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Housing Related Support - Other Adults 0.2 -0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Strategic Management & Directorate Support 31.5 -4.6 26.9 -1.1 0.0 -1.1 -0.2

Total - Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets (ASCH) 41.2 -6.1 35.1 -3.1 0.0 -3.1 1.3

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability & Mental Health

Adult Learning & Physical Disability Pathway - Residential Care Services 77.5 -6.3 71.2 -0.4 0.0 -0.4 -0.4

Adult Learning & Physical Disability Pathway - Community Based Services 98.8 -7.6 91.2 2.8 0.0 2.8 -0.6

Adult Learning Disability - Assessment Service 5.5 -0.2 5.3 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Adult Mental Health - Residential Care Services 12.7 -0.8 11.9 0.6 0.0 0.6 0.1

Adult Mental Health - Community Based Services 6.2 -0.7 5.5 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.4

Adult Mental Health - Assessment Services 10.0 -0.5 9.5 -0.3 0.0 -0.3 -0.1

Community Based Preventative Services - Learning Disability & Mental Health 6.0 -3.5 2.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Carers Support (Learning Disability & Mental Health) 2.8 -0.2 2.7 -0.2 0.0 -0.2 0.0

Housing Related Support (Learning Disability & Mental Health) 2.3 0.0 2.3 -0.3 0.0 -0.3 0.0

Looked After Children (with Disability) - Care & Support 11.9 -2.5 9.4 1.1 0.0 1.1 -0.2

Children in Need (Disability) - Care & Support 6.9 -0.1 6.9 -0.5 0.0 -0.5 0.0

Disabled Children & Young People Service (0-25 LD & Complex PD) - 

Assessment Service 6.0 0.0 6.0 0.3 0.0 0.3
-0.1

Divisional & Directorate Support 5.9 -0.3 5.7 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Budgets and Savings Plans to be allocated (LDMH) -0.4 0.0 -0.4 0.4 0.0 0.4 0.0

Total - Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability & Mental Health 252.1 -22.6 229.5 3.2 0.0 3.2 -1.6

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Older People & Physical Disability

Adult Physical Disability - Residential Care Services 15.5 -2.3 13.2 0.1 0.0 0.1 -0.1

Adult Physical Disability - Community Based Services 24.8 -3.5 21.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Older People - Residential Care Services 113.0 -56.8 56.3 0.7 0.0 0.7 0.7

Older People - Community Based Services 67.1 -36.3 30.9 0.8 0.0 0.8 -0.3

Community Based Preventative Services - Older People & Physical Disability 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Adaptive & Assistive Technology 10.8 -6.7 4.1 -0.9 0.0 -0.9 0.3

Carers Support (Older People & Physical Disability) 2.1 -1.3 0.8 -0.5 0.0 -0.5 -0.1

Housing Related Support (Older People & Physical Disability) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Older People & Physical Disability Assessment Services 29.0 -2.4 26.5 -0.4 0.0 -0.4 0.0

Children in Need (Disability) - Assessment Services 0.4 0.0 0.4 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Divisional Management & Support Costs (including savings yet to be 

allocated) 0.6 -0.1 0.5 -0.1 0.0 -0.1
0.2

Budgets and Savings Plans to be allocated (OPPD) -0.4 0.0 -0.4 -0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.2

Total - Older People & Physical Disability 262.8 -109.3 153.5 -0.6 0.0 -0.6 0.3

Total - Adult Social Care & Health 556.1 -138.0 418.1 -0.5 0.0 -0.5 0.0

Adult Social Care & Health

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Page 21



  

 

        Appendix 1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets - CYPE

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets 8.2 -3.6 4.5 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

Budget & Saving Plans to be allocated (CYPE) -2.3 0.0 -2.3 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0

Total - Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets (CYPE) 5.9 -3.6 2.3 1.1 0.0 1.1 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Education Services Planning & Resources

Special Educational Needs & Psychology Services 67.1 -64.1 2.9 2.0 0.0 2.0 0.6

Early Years Education 65.5 -65.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Home to School & College Transport 39.6 -3.7 35.9 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Fair Access & Planning Services 2.9 -2.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Education Services to be provided by the Education Services Company 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -1.1

Community Learning & Skills (CLS) 12.6 -13.8 -1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Education Services & Planning Resources Management & Divisional Support 2.0 -1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1

Other School Services 38.4 -40.3 -1.9 1.7 0.0 1.7 0.0

Total - Education Services Planning & Resources 229.1 -191.3 37.7 3.7 0.0 3.7 -0.4

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Quality & Standards

Education Services to be provided by the Education Services Company 18.0 -15.1 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Quality & Standards 18.0 -15.1 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Early Help & Preventative Services

Early Help & Preventative Services 20.9 -12.0 8.9 -1.0 0.0 -1.0 0.0

Children's Centres 7.6 -3.7 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1

Youth Services 6.6 -2.5 4.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

Pupil Referral Units & Inclusion 4.7 -4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Early Help & Preventative Services Management & Directorate Support 3.7 -2.4 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Early Help & Preventative Services 43.5 -25.5 18.1 -0.9 0.0 -0.9 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Specialist Children's Services

Looked After Children - Care & Support 59.4 -5.0 54.3 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.1

Children in Need - Care & Support 2.5 -0.2 2.3 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

Specialist Children's Service - Assessment & Safeguarding Service 50.9 -3.5 47.4 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Adoption Service & Permanency Arrangements 14.8 -0.1 14.7 -0.7 0.0 -0.7 -0.1

Care Leavers Service 6.6 -3.5 3.1 0.6 0.0 0.6 -0.1

Asylum 17.9 -17.9 0.0 2.3 0.0 2.3 -0.2

Specialist Children's Service - Management & Support Costs 3.5 -0.3 3.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1

Budgets and Savings Plans to be allocated (SCS) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Specialist Children's Services 155.5 -30.4 125.0 2.4 0.0 2.4 -0.1

Total - Children, Young People & Education 452.0 -265.9 186.1 6.2 0.0 6.2 -0.5

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Children, Young People & Education

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Page 22



  

 

 
Appendix 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets 1.4 -0.1 1.4 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Budget & Savings Plans to be allocated (GET) -0.7 0.0 -0.7 0.7 0.0 0.7 0.3

Total - Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets (GET) 0.7 -0.1 0.7 0.6 0.0 0.6 0.4

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Economic Development

Economic Development 6.4 -3.6 2.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1

Arts 1.8 0.0 1.8 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Total - Economic Development 8.2 -3.6 4.6 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Highways, Transportation & Waste

Highway Transportation (including School Crossing Patrols) 7.8 -2.3 5.5 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1

Highway Asset Management (Roads and Footways) 12.3 0.0 12.3 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.2

Highway Asset Management (Other) 21.9 -4.1 17.8 -0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.1

Subsidised Buses & Community Transport 8.1 -2.1 6.0 -0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.2

Concessionary Fares 17.2 0.0 17.2 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1

Young Person's Travel Pass 15.1 -6.3 8.7 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1

Residual Waste 39.4 -0.1 39.3 -0.9 0.0 -0.9 -0.1

Waste Facilities & Recycling Centres 31.6 -1.9 29.7 0.5 0.0 0.5 -0.2

Highways, Transport & Waste Management Costs and Commercial 

Operations 7.6 -3.2 4.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.4

Total - Highways, Transportation & Waste 161.0 -20.1 140.9 -0.5 0.0 -0.5 -0.9

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Environment, Planning & Enforcement

Public Protection (Enforcement) 13.2 -3.5 9.7 0.8 0.0 0.8 0.0

Environment & Planning 12.4 -8.1 4.2 -0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.2

Environment, Planning & Enforcement Management Costs 0.6 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Environment, Planning & Enforcement 26.2 -11.6 14.6 0.6 0.0 0.6 -0.2

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Libraries, Registration & Archives 15.9 -6.5 9.4 -0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.2

Total - Growth, Environment & Transport 212.1 -41.9 170.2 0.4 0.0 0.4 -1.1

Cash Limit Variance

Growth, Environment & Transport

Cash Limit Variance

Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit

Cash Limit Variance

Page 23



  

 

Appendix 1 
 

 
 

 

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategic & Corporate Services

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets (S&CS) 2.8 -4.9 -2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Budgets and Savings Plans to be allocated (S&CS) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Strategic & Corporate Services (excluding Public Health & BSC) 2.8 -4.9 -2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Engagement, Organisation Design & Development

Human Resources Related Services 8.5 -1.1 7.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Customer Contact, Communications & Consultations 6.3 -0.8 5.5 0.6 0.0 0.6 -0.1

Local Member Grants 2.6 0.0 2.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Engagement, Organisation Design & Development 17.4 -1.8 15.5 0.6 0.0 0.6 -0.1

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Finance 17.0 -5.9 11.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

General Counsel 5.2 -0.2 5.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Infrastructure

Property Related Services 35.4 -12.6 22.7 0.8 0.0 0.8 0.1

ICT Related Services 18.6 -2.6 16.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Infrastructure 54.0 -15.3 38.7 0.8 0.0 0.8 0.1

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategic Commissioning including Public Health

Strategic Commissioning 11.9 -3.8 8.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Public Health - Children's Programme 31.5 -31.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Public Health - Mental Health, Substance Misuse & Community Safety 16.7 -16.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Public Health - Sexual Health 12.6 -12.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Public Health - Healthy Lifestyles 8.8 -8.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Public Health - Advice & Other Staffing 4.4 -4.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Strategic Commissioning including Public Health 85.9 -77.8 8.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategy, Policy, Relationships & Corporate Assurance 2.2 -0.4 1.8 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Business Services Centre 23.9 -27.2 -3.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Strategic & Corporate Services 208.4 -133.7 74.7 1.3 0.0 1.3 -0.2

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Strategic & Corporate Services

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Page 24



  

 

Appendix 1 
 

 
 
Please note that budgets are held in the financial system to the nearest £100 and hence the figures in 
the table above may not add through exactly due to issues caused by rounding the figures for this 
report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Financing Items & Unallocated 130.4 -15.6 114.8 -2.3 0.0 -2.3 0.0

TOTAL BUDGET (excluding Schools' Delegated Budgets) 1,558.9 -595.1 963.9 5.1 0.0 5.1 -1.8

Schools' Delegated Budgets 637.4 -637.4 0.0 8.5 0.0 8.5 3.9

TOTAL BUDGET 2,196.3 -1,232.4 963.9 13.6 0.0 13.6 2.1

Cash Limit Variance

Financing Items

Page 25



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Gross

£m £m £m £m

Budget £76.8 -£6.3 £70.5 1,100 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £24.8 1,102

Forecast £75.8 -£5.6 £70.1 1,086 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £20.5 1,023

Variance -£1.0 £0.6 -£0.4 -14 Variance as at 31st July 2018 -£4.3 -79

MAIN REASONS FOR VARIANCE:

Appendix 2.1: Nursing & Residential Care - Learning Disability (aged 18+)

2018-19 

Client Number 

as at 31/03/2019 Position as at 31st July 2018

Client Number 

as at 31/07/2018

The gross forecast underspend of -£1.0m is due to lower than anticipated demand (-£1.4m) higher unit cost (+£0.9m), along with an additional

variance of -£0.5m predominately due to predicted net old year spend. This forecast underspend is partly offset by lower than expected income

of +£0.6m.  This leads to a net forecast pressure of -£0.4m.

£0.0

£1.0

£2.0

£3.0

£4.0

£5.0

£6.0

£7.0

£8.0

£9.0

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross Spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

1000

1020

1040

1060

1080

1100

1120

1140

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 

Snapshot of client numbers at the end of each month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 26



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Gross

£m £m £m £m

Budget £52.2 -£0.2 £52.0 1,398 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £11.9 1,398

Outturn £56.3 -£0.2 £56.1 1,513 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £10.5 1,468

Variance £4.1 £0.0 £4.1 115 Variance as at 31st May 2018 -£1.4 70

MAIN REASONS FOR VARIANCE:

The gross forecast pressure of +£4.1m is due to higher than anticipated demand in hours (+£3.7m) and higher unit cost (+£1.0m), along with an

additional variance of -£0.6m predominately due to the release of unrealised creditors.  This leads to a net forecast pressure of +£4.1m.

Appendix 2.2: Supported Living - Learning Disability (aged 18+) - Other Commissioned Supported Living arrangements

2018-19 

Outturn

Client Number 

as at 31/03/2019 Position as at 31st May 2018

Client Number 

as at 31/07/2018

-£4.0

-£2.0

£0.0

£2.0

£4.0

£6.0

£8.0

£10.0

£12.0

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross Spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

1300

1350

1400

1450

1500

1550

1600

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 

Snapshot of client numbers at the end of each month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 27



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Gross

£m £m £m £m

Budget £21.2 -£0.8 £20.4 1,283 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £8.4 1,263

Forecast £20.1 -£0.8 £19.2 1,201 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £7.6 1,181

Variance -£1.1 £0.0 -£1.1 -82 Variance as at 31st July 2018 -£0.9 -82

MAIN REASONS FOR VARIANCE:

Appendix 2.3: Direct Payments - Learning Disability (aged 18+)

2018-19 

Client Number 

as at 31/03/2019 Position as at 31st July 2018

Client Number 

as at 31/07/2018

The gross underspend of -£1.1m is due to lower than anticipated demand (-£1.1m)

£0.0

£0.5

£1.0

£1.5

£2.0

£2.5

£3.0

£3.5

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

1100

1150

1200

1250

1300

1350

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 

Snapshot of client numbers at the end of each month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 28



  

 

Gross Income Net Gross
£m £m £m £m

Budget £58.1 -£33.2 £24.9 2,165 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £19.4 2,165

Forecast £61.0 -£34.9 £26.1 2,242 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £18.2 2,173

Variance £2.9 -£1.7 £1.2 77 Variance as at 31st July 2018 -£1.2 8

MAIN REASONS FOR FORECAST VARIANCE:

Appendix 2.4: Nursing & Residential Care - Older People (aged 65+) - Residential - Commissioned service

2018-19 

Forecast

Client Number 

as at 31/03/2019 Position as at 31st July 2018

Client Number 

as at 31/07/2018

The gross forecast pressure of +£2.9m is due to higher than anticipated demand (+£2.2m) and a higher unit cost (+£0.7m). This pressure is

partly offset by greater than expected income of -£1.70m due to higher than anticipated service user contributions linked to the higher demand

(-£0.9m) and a higher average contribution per service user (-£0.8m). This leads to a net forecast overspend of +£1.2m. There is a slight time

delay before clients are included in the actual client count as contract details are finalised, accounting for the difference between forecast client

count and the previous month's actual client count shown below.

£0.0

£1.0

£2.0

£3.0

£4.0

£5.0

£6.0

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross Spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

2000

2050

2100

2150

2200

2250

2300

2350

2400

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 

Snapshot of client numbers at the end of each month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 29



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Gross
£m £m £m £m

Budget £34.7 -£17.5 £17.2 1,079 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £11.6 1,079

Forecast £35.4 -£18.6 £16.8 1,092 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £10.0 1,066

Variance £0.7 -£1.0 -£0.4 13 Variance as at 31st July 2018 -£1.6 -13

MAIN REASONS FOR FORECAST VARIANCE:

The gross forecast pressure of +£0.7m is due to higher than anticipated demand (+£0.3m) and higher unit cost (+£0.4m). This pressure is

partly offset by greater than expected income of -£1.0m primarily due to higher than anticipated service user contributions linked to the higher

demand (-£0.1m) and a higher average contribution per service user (-£0.9m).  This leads to a net forecast of -£0.4m.

Appendix 2.5: Nursing & Residential Care - Older People (aged 65+) - Nursing

2018-19 

Forecast

Client Number 

as at 31/03/2019 Position as at 31st July 2018

Client Number 

as at 31/07/2018

£0.0

£0.5

£1.0

£1.5

£2.0

£2.5

£3.0

£3.5

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross Spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

1000

1020

1040

1060

1080

1100

1120

1140

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 

Snapshot of client numbers at the end of each month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 30



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Gross

£m £m £m £m

Budget £37.7 -£5.8 £31.9 3,611 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £12.6 3,611

Forecast £39.1 -£5.8 £33.3 4,200 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £10.4 3,624

Variance £1.4 -£0.0 £1.4 589 Variance as at 31st July 2018 -£2.2 13

MAIN REASONS FOR FORECAST VARIANCE:

Appendix 2.6: Domiciliary Care - Older People (aged 65+) - Commissioned service

2018-19 

Forecast

Client Number 

as at 31/03/2019 Position as at 31st July 2018

Client Number 

as at 31/07/2018

The gross forecast pressure of +£1.4m is due to lower than anticipated demand (-£0.5m) and higher unit cost (+£2.2m), along with an

additional non activity variance of -£0.4m due to a realignment of the gross cash limit with non residential charging income. This leads to a net

forecast variance of +£1.4m.

£0.0

£0.5

£1.0

£1.5

£2.0

£2.5

£3.0

£3.5

£4.0

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross Spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

3400

3500

3600

3700

3800

3900

4000

4100

4200

4300

4400

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 

Snapshot of client numbers at the end of each month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 31



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Gross

£m £m £m £m

Budget £19.4 £0.0 £19.4 870 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £6.7 870

Forecast £19.7 £0.0 £19.7 839 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £6.8 839

Variance £0.3 £0.0 £0.3 -31 Variance as at 31st July 2018 £0.1 -31

MAIN REASONS FOR VARIANCE:

Appendix 2.7: Children in Care (Looked After) - Fostering - In house service

2018-19 

Forecast

Client Number 

as at 31/03/2019 Position as at 31 Jul 18

Client Number 

as at 31/07/2018

The gross forecast pressure of +£0.3m is due to a higher unit cost (+£0.9m) partially offset by lower demand (-£0.7m). 

£0.00

£0.20

£0.40

£0.60

£0.80

£1.00

£1.20

£1.40

£1.60

£1.80

£2.00

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross Spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 

Snapshot of client numbers at the end of each month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 32



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Gross

£m £m £m £m

Budget £8.3 £0.0 £8.3 162 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £2.8 162

Forecast £8.3 £0.0 £8.3 165 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £2.1 165

Variance £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 3 Variance as at 31st July 2018 -£0.7 3

MAIN REASONS FOR VARIANCE:

The gross forecast shows a balanced position, but within this there is higher than anticipated demand (+£0.2m) and lower unit cost (-£0.1m).

Appendix 2.8: Children in Care (Looked After) - Fostering - Commissioned from Independent Fostering Agencies

2018-19 

Forecast

Client Number 

as at 31/03/2019 Position as at 31st Jul 2018

Client Number 

as at 31/07/2018

£0.0

£0.1

£0.2

£0.3

£0.4

£0.5

£0.6

£0.7

£0.8

£0.9

£1.0

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross Spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

140

145

150

155

160

165

170

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 

Snapshot of client numbers at the end of each month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 33



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Gross

£m £m £m £m

Budget £13.1 -£0.8 £12.3 75 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £4.4 75

Forecast £13.4 -£0.9 £12.5 76 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £3.9 77

Variance £0.3 -£0.1 £0.2 1 Variance as at 31st July 2018 -£0.5 2

MAIN REASONS FOR VARIANCE:

The gross forecast overspend of +£0.3m is due to a higher than anticipated unit cost (+0.3m). This is partly offset by a greater than expected

income of -£0.1m, primarily due to greater contributions for care costs from Health & Education, leading to a net forecast pressure of £0.2m. It is

important to note, due to the high cost of these placements (£2,000 - £6,000 per week), a very relatively small change in numbers of placements

can have a significant impact on the forecast.

Appendix 2.9: Children in Care (Looked After) - Residential Children's Services - Commissioned from Independent Sector

2017-18 

Forecast

Client Number 

as at 31/03/2019 Position as at 31st July 2018

Client Number 

as at 31/07/2018

£0.0

£0.2

£0.4

£0.6

£0.8

£1.0

£1.2

£1.4

£1.6

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross Spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

60

62

64

66

68

70

72

74

76

78

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 

Snapshot of client numbers at the end of each month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 34



  

 

 

 

2018-19 KCC Agency Gross KCC Agency Gross KCC Agency

Forecast £m £m £m £m £m £m FTEs Nos

Budget £40.6 £2.8 £43.3 YTD Budget £13.8 £0.9 £14.7 as at 31/07/18 322.4 57.0 

Forecast £37.2 £6.1 £43.3 YTD Spend £12.0 £1.5 £13.5 as at 31/07/18 308.9 60.6 

Variance -£3.4 £3.4 £0.0 YTD Variance -£1.8 £0.6 -£1.2 YTD Movement -13.5 3.6 

MAIN REASONS FOR VARIANCE:

Appendix 2.10: Assessment Services - Children's Social Care (CSC) staffing

Position

as at 31/07/18 Staff numbers

This measure focuses on the level of social workers & senior practitioners rather than the overall staffing level within this budget. The budget assumes that

CSC Staffing will be met using salaried workers and a small proportion of agency, so any additional agency workers (who are more expensive than salaried

staff) would result in a pressure on this budget. This measure shows the extent of the vacancies within CSC that are currently covered by agency workers.

At present a reduced number of salaried workers in excess of agency use is contributing to a -£0.1m underspend against Children's Social Work Services -

Assessment & Safeguarding Service Budget. However minor overspends on other services leads to the overall forecast variance for this budget being break 

even.

£0.00

£0.50

£1.00

£1.50

£2.00

£2.50

£3.00

£3.50

£4.00

£4.50

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross spend per month

KCC Staff Budget KCC Staff Spend

KCC Staff forecast spend Agency Staff Budget

Agency Staff Spend Agency Staff Forecast Spend

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

N
o

 o
f 

St
af

f 
p

e
r 

m
o

n
th

 

Number of social work staff per month

KCC FTEs Agency Staff FTEs

P
age 35



  

 

 

Appendix 2.11: Number of Looked After Children and Number of Special Guardianship Orders (SGOs) with Costs

The left-hand graph shows a snapshot of the number of children designated as looked after at the end of each month (including those currently

missing), it is not the total number of looked after children during the period. The OLA LAC information is completely reliant on Other Local

Authorities keeping KCC informed of which children are placed within Kent. The Management Information Unit (MIU) regularly contact these

OLAs for up to date information, but replies are not always forthcoming.

Overall the Specialist Children's Services is forecasting a breakeven position, whilst Disabled Children's Services budget is forecasting a

pressure of which a key part of this relates to the LAC heading in reference to those in residential care. Overall the number of LAC are

remaining steady, however due to the increasing complexity of children being placed, the overall cost of suitable placements is increasing.

The right hand graph shows the number of SGOs incurring costs, which are approved by the courts. These children are either former LAC or

may have become LAC if an SGO was not granted.

1,257 1,241 1,219 1,197

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

170 167 170 175

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

223 206 216 221

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1,293 1,291 1,308 1,329

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

Lo
o

ke
d

 A
Ft

e
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 (

p
e

r 
m

n
o

th
)

Looked After Children

No of Kent LACs in Kent No of Kent LACs in OLAs

No of Kent Asylum LAC No of OLA LACs in Kent

700

725

750

775

800

825

850

875

900

925

950

N
o

 o
f 

St
af

f 
p

e
r 

m
o

n
th

 

Special Guardianship Orders

No of SGOs

Affordable
SGOs

P
age 36



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Gross

£m £m £m £m

Budget £28.7 -£0.8 £27.9 4,096 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £7.8 4,096

Forecast £29.1 -£0.8 £28.3 4,263 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £7.3 4,143

Variance £0.4 £0.0 £0.4 167 Variance as at 31st July 2018 -£0.5 47

MAIN REASONS FOR VARIANCE:

The SEN transport forecast is currently forecasting a +£0.4m pressure however an overall breakeven position is currently being forecast for home

to school & college SEN transport, home to school mainstream transport and 16+ Kent Card until the September 2018 monitoring report (reported

to Cabinet in November 2018) when the forecasts for these budgets will be fully reviewed. These forecasts are heavily dependent on the

September pupil numbers which will not be known until the end of September 18. At which time, there will also be further clarity on the impact of the

recent procurement exercises. 

Appendix 2.12: Transport Services - Home to School / College Transport (Special Education Needs)

2018-19

Forecast

No of pupils as 

at 31/03/2019 YTD Position as at 31/07/2018

No of pupils as 

at 31/07/2018

-£0.5

£0.0

£0.5

£1.0

£1.5

£2.0

£2.5

£3.0

£3.5

£4.0

£4.5

£5.0

£5.5

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross Spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

3600

3700

3800

3900

4000

4100

4200

4300

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ch
ild

re
n

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 

Number of children receiving SEN transport each month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 37



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Gross

£m £m £m £m

Budget £39.4 -£0.1 £39.3 366,772 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £13.2 123,352

Actual £38.7 -£0.3 £38.4 360,253 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £9.9 123,213

Variance -£0.7 -£0.2 -£0.9 -6,519 Variance as at 31st July 2018 -£3.3 -139

MAIN REASONS FOR FORECAST VARIANCE:

The gross underspend of -£0.7m is due to a volume variance of -6,519 tonnes. Income from additional trade waste tonnes has further increased

the underspend (-£0.2m) leading to a net saving of -£0.9m. The -£3.3m underspend to date shown in the table above is due to no monthly

payment being made in April; this is forecast to catch up in March as shown in the chart below.

Appendix 2.13: Treatment and disposal of residual waste

2018-19 

Forecast

Waste Tonnage 

to 31/03/2019 Position as at 31st July 2018

Waste Tonnage 

to 31/07/2018

24,000

25,000

26,000

27,000

28,000

29,000

30,000

31,000

32,000

33,000

34,000

35,000

36,000

W
as

te
 T

o
n

n
ag

e
 p

e
r 

m
o

n
th

 

Waste Tonnage per month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast ActivityA
p

r

M
a

y

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v

D
e

c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
a

r

-£0.5

£0.0

£0.5

£1.0

£1.5

£2.0

£2.5

£3.0

£3.5

£4.0

£4.5

£5.0

£5.5

£6.0

£6.5

G
ro

ss
 s

pe
nd

 p
er

 m
on

th
 (

£m
s)

Gross spend per month

Budgeted Spend - Other
Residual Waste

Budgeted Spend - Allington
Waste to Energy

Actual Spend - Other Residual
Waste

Actual Spend - Allington
Waste to Energy

Forecast Spend - Other
Residual Waste

Forecast Spend - Allington
Waste to Energy

P
age 38



  

 

 

Gross Income Net Net

£m £m £m £m

Budget £31.6 -£1.9 £29.7 373,013 Budget: Spend/Activity Year to Date £9.1 141,644

Actual £32.1 -£1.9 £30.2 363,054 Actual: Spend/Activity Year to Date £7.0 140,454

Variance £0.4 £0.0 £0.5 -9,959 Variance as at 31st July 2018 -£2.1 -1,190

MAIN REASONS FOR FORECAST VARIANCE:

Within Gross there is an overspend of +£0.4m. This is mainly due to a price variance of +£0.7m across all MRF contracts plus 7,559 tonnes of

composted waste which add +£0.4m. This pressure is offset by reduced recycling credits (-4,413 tonnes/-£0.3m) as well as -£0.7m of savings

due to actual waste types differing from the budgeted levels, with each waste type being disposed of in different ways, each with their own unit

costs and indexation levels. Other gross variances add up to +£0.3m. A shortfall in income resulting from lower levels of paper and card waste (-

6,304 tonnes/+£0.3m) is offset by the North Farm fire insurance payment (-£0.3m). The -£2.1m underspend to date shown in the table above is

due to no monthly management payments being made in April; this is forecast to catch up in March as shown in the chart below. Variations in

tonnes may not always impact on the financial position as not all changes in waste types attract an additional cost.

Appendix 2.14: Waste Processing

2018-19 

Forecast

Waste Tonnage 

to 31/03/2018 Position as at 31st July 2018

Waste Tonnage 

to 31/07/2018

-£0.5

£0.5

£1.5

£2.5

£3.5

£4.5

£5.5

£6.5

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross Spend per month

Budgeted Spend Actual Spend Forecast Spend

18,000

20,000

22,000

24,000

26,000

28,000

30,000

32,000

34,000

36,000

38,000

40,000

W
as

te
 T

o
n

n
ag

e
 p

e
r 

m
o

n
th

 

Waste Tonnage per month

Activity Budgeted Actual Activity Forecast Activity

P
age 39



  

 

2018-19 KCC Agency Gross KCC Agency Gross KCC Agency

Outturn £m £m £m £m £m £m FTEs Nos

Budget £304.7 £5.7 £310.4 YTD Budget £101.6 £1.9 £103.4 as at 31 Mar 2018 7,564.13 687 

Outturn £302.3 £16.0 £318.3 YTD Spend £98.7 £5.3 £104.0 as at 31 July 2018 7,178.95 603 

Variance -£2.4 £10.3 £7.9 YTD Variance -£2.9 £3.5 £0.6 Annual Movement -385.18 -84 

MAIN REASONS FOR VARIANCE:

Appendix 2.15: All Staffing Budgets (excluding schools)

as at 31 July 

2018 Staff numbers

There is a small underspend against KCC staff budgets but this is being negated by an overspend on agency staff. The number of KCC staff has

reduced by 385.18 FTE since last month. This is due to staff moving to Cantium Business Solutions Ltd. Vacancies are being held pending the

outcome of restructuring and the uncertainty around budget cuts, which is contributing to the underspend against the KCC staff budgets. The

majority of the overspend on agency staff relates to Children's Social Care Staff.

The staffing numbers provided are a snapshot position at the end of the month.

£0

£5

£10

£15

£20

£25

£30

G
ro

ss
 S

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

£
m

s)

Gross spend per month

KCC Staff Budget KCC Staff Spend

KCC Staff forecast spend Agency Staff Budget

Agency Staff Spend Agency Staff Forecast Spend

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

St
af

f 
p

e
r 

m
o

n
th

Number of Staff per month

KCC FTEs Agency Staff

P
age 40



  

 

 
Appendix 3 

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) 
 
 

1. July 18-19 position compared to budget by age category 
 

The July 18-19 position is a pressure of £2.3m as detailed below: 
 

Jul-18 

Cash Limit Forecast Variance 

Gross Income Net Gross Income Net 

£m £m £m £m £m £m 

 Aged under 16 1.9 -1.9 0.0 1.6 -1.9 -0.4 

 Aged 16 & 17 8.1 -8.1 0.0 9.3 -8.0 1.3 

 Aged 18 & over (care 
leavers) 

7.90 -7.9 0.0 9.4 -8.1 1.4 

  17.9 -17.9 0.0 20.3 -18.0 2.3 

 
 
 

2. Number of UASC & Care Leavers by age category  
 

 
 

 

Aged under 16 Aged 16 & 17 Aged 18 & over TOTAL

Aug-17 80   301   790   1,171   

Sep-17 77   293   800   1,170   

Oct-17 76   277   806   1,159   

Nov-17 72   272   815   1,159   

Dec-17 74   263   819   1,156   

Jan-18 43   228   875   1,146   

Feb-18 39   216   869   1,124   

Mar-18 39   203   869   1,111   

Apr-18 37   196   874   1,107   

May-18 30   188   879   1,097   

Jun-18 34   194   880   1,108   

Jul-18 37   199   887   1,123   

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

Number of UASC by age category and total number of 
UASC

Aged under 16 Aged 16 & 17 Aged 18 & over TOTAL

Page 41



  

 

 
The number of Asylum LAC shown in Appendix 2.11 (LAC numbers) is different 
to the total number of under 18 UASC clients shown within this indicator, due 
to UASC under 18 clients including both Looked After Children and 16 and 17-
year-old Care Leavers.  The number of UASC children is now below the 
minimum threshold of UASC for the authority as a % of population (231) 
meaning new arrivals are not being placed on the dispersal scheme.   Under 
18 arrivals may be expected to increase very slightly over the next few months 
to reach and maintain the minimum threshold.  The number of UASC Care 
Leavers over 18 years old is continuing to increase slightly due to the Legacy 
UASC from 2015/16 becoming 18 years old and the over 21’s choosing to 
remain within the service. 

 
3. Number of Eligible & Ineligible Clients incl All Rights of appeal Exhausted 

(ARE) clients at the end of each month 

 

   
  

Eligible Clients are those who do meet the Home Office grant rules criteria. Appeal 
Rights Exhausted (ARE) clients are eligible for the first 13 weeks providing a human 
rights assessment is completed.    

 

Ineligible clients are those who do not meet the Home Office grant rules criteria.  
For young people (under 18), this includes accompanied minors and long term 
absences (e.g. hospital or prison).  For care leavers, there is an additional level 
of eligibility as the young person must have leave to remain or “continued in 
time” appeal applications to be classed as an eligible client. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2018/19 
Eligible 

Clients

of which 

AREs

Ineligible 

Clients

of which 

AREs

Total 

Clients

Total 

AREs

Outturn 2017/18 900 13 211 41 1,111 54

April 917 20 190 33 1,107 53

May 914 20 183 33 1,097 53

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

Page 42



  

 

 
 
4. Numbers of UASC referrals, assessed as requiring ongoing support 
  

  

No of 
referrals 

No 
assessed 
as new 
client 

% 
No of 

dispersals 

Aug-16 42    4    10% 32    

Sep-16 42    5    12% 40    

Oct-16 20    2    10% 33    

Nov-16 11    1    9% 19    

Dec-16 11    3    27% 7    

Jan-17 16    1    6% 13    

Feb-17 11    0    0% 15    

Mar-17 25    4    16% 21    

Apr-17 14    2    14% 17    

May-17 13    1    8% 8    

Jun-17 27    1    4% 17    

Jul-17 14    2    14% 12    

Aug-17 25    2    8% 17    

Sep-17 16    0    0% 7    

Oct-17 19    4    21% 12    

Nov-17 23    9    39% 11    

Dec-17 13    2    15% 14    

Jan-18 17    8    47% 8    

Feb-18 8    4    50% 15    

Mar-18 11    7    64% 9    

Apr-18 4    3    75% 1    

May-18 7    7    100% 5    

Jun-18 20    20    100% 1    

Jul-18 20    20    100% 0    

 

Page 43



  

 

 
 
5. Total number of dispersals – new referrals & existing UASC 
  

In total there have been 359 new arrivals that have been dispersed since July 
2016. These are included within the referrals in table 4. This also includes 
arrivals since 01 July 16 dispersed to London Boroughs, who are not 
participating in the transfer scheme. 
 
 

Duration 

Arrivals who have 
been dispersed 

post new 
Government 

Transfer Scheme 
(w.e.f 01 July 16)* 

Former Kent UASC 
who have been 

dispersed 
(entry prior to 01 July 

16) Total 

Jul-16 - Jun 17 208    39    247    

Jul-17 12    0    12    

Aug-17 17    0    17    

Sep-17 6    1    7    

Oct-17 12    0    12    

Nov-17 11    0    11    

Dec-17 14    0    14    

Jan-18 8    0    8    

Feb-18 15    0    15    

Mar-18 9    0    9    

Apr-18 1    0    1    

May-18 5    0    5    

Jun-18 1    0    1    

Jul-18 0    0    0    

 
 
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45
A

u
g-

1
6

Se
p

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

D
e

c-
1

6

Ja
n

-1
7

Fe
b

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n

-1
7

Ju
l-

1
7

A
u

g-
1

7

Se
p

-1
7

O
ct

-1
7

N
o

v-
1

7

D
e

c-
1

7

Ja
n

-1
8

Fe
b

-1
8

M
ar

-1
8

A
p

r-
1

8

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
n

-1
8

Ju
l-

1
8

Number of UASC referrals, numbers assessed as requiring ongoing support

No of referrals No assessed as new client No of dispersals

Page 44



  

 

                APPENDIX 4   

                    

  KEY ACTIVITY INDICATORS AND BUDGET RISK ASSESSMENT MONITORING   

                    

1.1 Capital Receipts             

  The total receipts banked to 31.07.18 is £0.224m.  This differs from the "sold" figure in table1.2  
below, due to the time it takes for the monies to be reflected in the capital receipts code.   

                    

1.2 Total Potential Receipts             

                £m   

    Sold           1.33   

    Exchanged         8.30   

    Under Offer         15.33   

    Negotiation         14.35   

    On the market         7.88   

    Preparing           3.78   

    Total potential receipts       50.97   

                    

 1.3 The table in 1.2 shows total potential receipts for 2018-19 at £50.97m. However it is unrealistic 
to expect all of these to materialise in the current financial year.  If we assume to get in those sold, 
exchanged and under offer, this totals £24.96m.  Compared to the £35.87m required to fund the  
capital programme this year, that would result in a deficit of £10.91m.  This position will be closely 
monitored throughout the year. 

 

  

                    

                TOTAL   

                £m   

    Banked capital receipts as at 31.03.18     0.00   

    Receipts sold, under offer or in negotiation     24.96   

    Capital receipt funding required for capital programme in 2018-19 35.87   

    
Potential surplus of Useable Capital 
Receipts     -10.91   

                    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



  

 

 

1. Estimate of Capital Expenditure (including PFI)

2. Estimate of capital financing requirement (underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose)

2017-18 2018-19 2018-19

Actual
Original 

Estimate
Forecast

£m £m £m

1,322.493 1,373.692 1,334.090

-39.901 45.406 11.597

3. Estimate of ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

12.96%

12.01%

12.02%

4. Operational Boundary for External Debt

a)

Prudential 

Indicator

Position 

as at 

31.07.18

£m £m

1,003 906

271 263

1,274 1,169

APPENDIX 5

The operational boundary for debt is determined having regard to actual levels of debt, borrowing 

anticipated in the capital plan, the requirements of treasury strategy and prudent requirements in 

relation to day to day cash flow management.  The operational boundary for debt will not be 

exceeded in 2018-19.

In the light of current commitments and planned expenditure, forecast net borrowing by the Council 

will not exceed the Capital Financing Requirement.

Forecast 2018-19

Borrowing

Other Long Term Liabilities

Operational boundary for debt relating to KCC assets and activities

2018-19 OUTTURN MONITORING OF PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

Capital Financing 

requirement

Annual increase/reduction 

in underlying need to 

borrow

Actuals 2017-18

Original estimate 2018-19

Actuals 2017-18

Original estimate 2018-19

Revised estimate 2018-19

£188.249m

£295.449m

£244.569m

Page 46



  

 

 
 

 
 
 

b)

Prudential 

Indicator

Position 

as at 

31.07.18

£m £m

1,038 941

271 263

1,309 1,204

5. Authorised Limit for External Debt

Authorised 

limit for 

debt 

relating to 

KCC 

assets and 

activities

Position as 

at 

31.07.18

Authorise

d limit for 

total debt 

managed 

by KCC

Position 

as at 

31.07.18

£m £m £m £m

1,043 906 1,078 941

271 263 271 263

1,314 1,169 1,349 1,204

6. Compliance with CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Sector

7. Upper limits of fixed interest rate and variable rate exposures

100%

50%

Operational boundary for total debt managed by KCC including that relating to Medway 

Council etc (pre Local Government Reorganisation)

Fixed interest rate exposure

Variable rate exposure

These limits have been complied with in 2018-19

Borrowing

Other long term liabilities

The Council has adopted the Code of Practice on Treasury Management and has adopted a 

Treasury Management Policy Statement.  Compliance has been tested and validated by our 

independent professional treasury advisers.

The Council has determined the following upper limits for 2018-19

Borrowing

Other Long Term Liabilities

The authorised limit includes additional allowance, over and above the operational boundary to 

provide for unusual cash movements.  It is a statutory limit set and revised by the Council.  The 

revised limits for 2018-19 are:

Page 47



  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Upper limits for maturity structure of borrowings

Upper limit
Lower 

limit

% % %

10 0 2.56

10 0 2.11

15 0 7.26

15 0 8.75

20 5 11.35

25 5 18.98

25 10 17.05

30 10 28.76

30 10 3.18

9. Upper limit for principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days

Indicator £250m

Actual £220m

50 years and within 60 years

5 years and within 10 years

10 years and within 20 years

20 years and within 30 years

30 years and within 40 years

40 years and within 50 years

12 months and within 24 months

24 months and within 5 years

Position as 

at 

Under 12 months

Page 48



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 

 
By: 
 

 
Cabinet Member for Finance, Peter Oakford 
Interim Corporate Directors of Finance, Cath Head and Dave Shipton 
 

To: 
 

Corporate Board, Cabinet – For Information 
 

Subject: 
 

REVENUE & CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING - JUNE 2018-19  
 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report provides the budget monitoring position up to 30 June 2018-19 for both revenue 
and capital budgets. 

 

1.2 The format of this report is: 

• This covering summary report which provides a high level financial summary and 
highlights only the most significant issues, as determined by Corporate Directors. 

• Appendix 1 – a high level breakdown of the directorate monitoring positions; 
 

1.3 Please note the forecast revenue and capital monitoring position. In the light of further 
government funding reductions in the short to medium term, it is essential that a balanced 
revenue position is achieved in 2018-19, as any residual pressures rolled forward into 2019-
20 will only compound an already extremely challenging 2019-20 budget position. The 
forecast revenue pressure is £6.860m (with no Corporate Director adjustments this month) 
increasing to £8.455m including roll forwards. Although this is an improvement on last month’s 
forecast of £10.730m (£11.480m including roll forwards), this position still needs to be 
managed down to at least a balanced position.   

 

1.4 Evidence from previous years indicates that the position improves as the year progresses. 
This is in part due to the delivery of management action, although history suggests that 
managers also have a tendency to be pessimistic with their forecasting, by declaring 
pressures early but holding back on declaring underspending until towards year end. That’s 
not to say that such a significant turnaround can be repeated again this year, especially as 
the risk of non-delivery of savings increases each year due to the aggregated impact of year 
on year reductions and the ability to find new areas in which to make savings are becoming 
fewer. Clearly, much depends on our negotiation with the Home Office, where we will be 
seeking full reimbursement of the costs of supporting unaccompanied asylum seekers and 
care leavers. 

 
1.5 There is a reported variance of -£40.444m on the 2018-19 capital budget (excluding schools 

and PFI).  This is made up of +£0.573m real variance and -£41.017m rephasing. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 Note the forecast revenue budget monitoring position for 2018-19 and capital budget 

monitoring position for 2018-19 to 2020-21, and that the forecast pressure on the revenue 
budget needs to be eliminated as we progress through the year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 

 
 
3.  SUMMARISED REVENUE MONITORING POSITION 
 

3.1 Overall the net projected revenue variance for the Council as reported by budget managers 
is a pressure of £6.860m.  After allowing for roll forwards the position increases to £8.455m.  
This forecast position, after roll forward requirements, represents a movement of -£3.025m 
from the May monitoring position. The main reasons for the movement this month are 
provided in section 3.3 below.  

 
In total, this position reflects that we are on track to deliver the majority of the £50.2m of 
savings included in the approved budget for this year, but further work is urgently required to 
identify options to eliminate the residual £8.455m forecast pressure. The position by 
directorate, together with the movement from the last report, is shown in table 1a & 1b below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 

 
3.2 Table 1:  Directorate revenue position 

 

Budget

Net 

Forecast 

Variance *

Corporate 

Director 

Adjustment

Revised Net 

Variance

Last 

Reported 

Position

Movement

£m £m £m £m £m £m

35.347 -4.379 -4.379 -3.163 -1.216

228.462 4.821 4.821 4.703 0.118

154.316 -0.909 -0.909 -0.158 -0.752

418.124 -0.467 0.000 -0.467 1.382 -1.850

2.270 1.061 1.061 1.063 -0.002

37.76 4.135 4.135 4.184 -0.049

2.958 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

18.060 -0.942 -0.942 0.022 -0.963

125.027 2.453 2.453 2.917 -0.464

186.075 6.707 0 6.707 8.185 -1.477

0.662 0.204 0.204 0.250 -0.046

4.612 0.063 0.063 0.000 0.063

140.859 0.255 0.255 -0.033 0.288

14.609 0.801 0.801 0.822 -0.021

9.413 0.048 0.048 -0.002 0.050

170.155 1.370 1.370 1.036 0.334

-2.151 -0.007 -0.007 -0.003 -0.004

15.438 0.722 0.722 0.819 -0.097

10.918 -0.007 -0.007 -0.248 0.241

5.014 0.066 0.066 0.103 -0.036

38.529 0.700 0.700 1.606 -0.906

8.098 -0.001 -0.001 -0.001 0.000

1.719 0.053 0.053 0.128 -0.076

-3.304 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

74.261 1.527 0 1.527 2.404 -0.877

114.690 -2.277 -2.277 -2.277 0.000

963.306 6.860 0.000 6.860 10.730 -3.870

0 4.520 4.520 7.519 -2.999

963.306 11.379 0 11.379 18.249 -6.869

Disabled Children, Adult Learning 

Disability & Mental Health

Older People & Physical Disability

Total Adult Social Care & Health

Total Growth, Environment & 

Transport

Engagement, Organisation Design & 

Development

Finance

Directorate

Education Services, Planning & 

Resources

Quality & Standards

Early Help & Preventative Services

Adult Social Care & Health

Children, Young People & Education

Infrastructure

Strategic Commissioning including 

Public Health

Strategic Management & Directorate 

Budgets (CYPE)

Strategic Management & Directorate 

Budgets (ASCH)

Strategic Management & Directorate 

Budgets (S&CS)

Growth, Environment & Transport

Strategic & Corporate Services

Strategy, Policy, Relationships & 

Corporate Assurance

Business Services Centre

Specialist Children's Services

Total Children, Young People & 

Education

Sub Total Strategic & Corporate 

Services

Financing Items & Unallocated

Schools (CYPE Directorate)

TOTAL (Excl Schools)

TOTAL

Highways, Transportation & Waste

Environment, Planning & Enforcement

Strategic Management & Directorate 

Budgets (GET)

Economic Development

Libraries, Registration & Archives

General Counsel

Page 51



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 

 

 

 

  
* the variances reflected in appendix 1 will feature in this column 
 
3.3 Table 1b: Provisional Directorate revenue position after roll forwards: 
 

 
 
3.3.1 The main reasons for the movement of -£3.870m before roll forward requirements and                

-£3.025m after roll forward requirements, are: 
 

3.3.2     Adult Social Care and Health: 
 

The overall movement for the Directorate forecast variance since the May monitoring is a 
reduction of £1.850m, an explanation of significant movements is detailed below. 

 
3.3.2.1    Strategic Management and Directorate Budgets – Adults 
 

The pressure within Strategic Management and Directorate has decreased since May by  
-£1.216m. 

 
-£0.611m relates to ‘Housing Related Support’ services commissioned for clients with 
Learning Disabilities, where contracts with several providers have come to an end. Support 
for these clients is being provided through ‘Learning Disability Community Based Services’ 
such as ‘Supporting Independence Living’ services. There is also a -£0.387m decrease within 
Safeguarding Adults. This reflects a planned underspend on a dedicated piece of work to 
clear the DOL’s backlog. The contract will not commence until October and as this project is 
funded with one off budget, a request is being made to roll forward £0.750m to 2019-20. 

 
3.3.2.2   Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability and Mental Health 

 
The pressure on Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability & Mental Health has increased 
by +£0.118m since May. 

 
There are several offsetting variances which make up this movement. +£0.193m relates to 
new 18-25 clients receiving Supported Living who had higher support needs than anticipated.  

Variance from above (excl Schools) 6.860 10.730 -3.870

Roll Forwards - committed 0.000

- re-phased 1.595 0.750 0.845

- bids 0.000

1.595 0.750 0.845

8.455 11.480 -3.025

(-ve) Uncommitted balance / (+ve) 

Deficit

Total Roll Forward Requirements

Variance

Committed Re-phased Bids

£m £m £m £m

-0.467 0.750 0.283

6.707 0.845
7.552

1.370 1.370

1.527 1.527

-2.277 -2.277

6.860 1.595 0.000 0.000 8.455

 Directorate

Roll Forwards Revised 

Variance

£m

Adult Social Care & Health

Children, Young People & 

Education

Growth, Environment & Transport

Strategic & Corporate Services

Financing Items & Unallocated

TOTAL (Excl Schools)

Page 52



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 

 
There have also been increases within Adult Learning & Physical Disability Pathway - 
Community Based Services related to the transfer of clients from Housing Related support  
 
 
contracts into Supported Living. This has been offset by a forecast adjustment in anticipation 
of budget virements expected in July. 

 

3.3.2.4    Older People and Physical Disability 
 

The pressure on Older People & Physical Disability has decreased since May by -£0.752m. 
This position includes several forecast adjustments in anticipation of budget virements 
expected in July. In addition, savings forecasts previously held within Budget & Saving Plans 
to be allocated have now been assigned to the appropriate services in line with the 
Directorate’s ongoing Transformation Plan. 

 
The main movements relate to: a net decrease in Adult Physical Disability Residential Care 
Services of -£1.551m, (-£1.600m of which is an adjustment for July Virements); this is offset 
by an increase of +£0.639m within Older People - Residential Care Services (+£2.500m of 
which is an adjustment for July Virements). In addition to this there is a net increase in Older 
People - Community Based Services of +£1.548m which is directly offset by a decrease of      
-£1.514m within Budget & Saving Plans to be allocated (OPPD). This reflects the previously 
mentioned transfer of planned savings forecasts to the appropriate services to reflect the 
Directorate’s Transformation agenda. 

 

3.3.3 Children, Young People and Education Directorate: 
 

 The initial forecast for Children, Young People and Education Directorate indicates an overall 
pressure of £6.707m, of which £2.487m relates to the Asylum service. This variance 
represents a movement of -£1.477m from May monitoring. -£0.826m of which is in Early Help 
and Preventative Services for the Tackling Troubled Families programme. 

 
 For the Asylum Service the current variance represents a movement of -£0.413m from the 

May monitoring position. There is a -£0.2m reduced pressure on both the NTS Reception 
Centre and 18+ care leavers grant shortfall. 

 
3.3.4 Growth, Environment & Growth: 
 

The current position is a forecast pressure of +£1.370m, representing an increase of 
+£0.334m since last month.  

 
The forecast pressure against Waste Facilities & Recycling Centres has increased by 
+£0.185m primarily due to higher volumes of compostable waste.   

 
The movement against Highways, Transport & Waste Management Costs and Commercial 
Operations of +£0.185m results from a number of minor changes.  

 
Other small movements make up the balance of -£0.036m. 

 

3.3.5 Strategic & Corporate Services: 
  
 The overall forecast for the Strategic and Corporate Services Directorate has decreased by -

£0.877m since the May monitoring report.  This is mainly due to a rephasing of the Asset 
Utilisation savings target of -£0.900m. 

 

Page 53



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 

 
For Public Health the current forecast outturn is an underspend of -£0.1m which is a reduction 
of -£0.1m from the position reported to Cabinet in July. Within this is an increase in Public 
Health - Children's Programme of +£0.2m primarily resulting from costs incurred following the 
school health continence review. The increase is offset by small reductions in Public  
 
Health - Sexual Health of -£0.1m and Public Health - Healthy Lifestyles of -£0.1m as well as 
other minor movements of -£0.1m. 

 
 

3.4.6 Financing Items 
 
 There is no movement in the variance of -£2.277 from the May monitoring report. 

 
3.5     Revenue budget monitoring headlines (please refer to Appendix 1) 

 
3.4.1       Adult Social Care and Health 

 
The overall forecast variance for the Directorate is an underspend of -£0.5m and an 
explanation of significant variances are detailed in the paragraphs below.  

 
This variance position reflects activity data to date in the 2018-19 financial year and we will 
continue to refine the forecast alongside activity trends over the remaining months. 
 

3.5.1.1 Strategic Management and Directorate Budgets – Adults 
  

 The forecast variance for Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets - Adults is -£4.4m. 
 

• This variance relates mainly to centrally held funds still to be allocated which cover 
pressures already recognised within the forecast position. This includes -£1.7m variance 
against sustainability funding, and -£1.5m against Social Care Support monies. This 
partially offsets pressures from unachievable in year savings of +£0.4m. 

• There is an underspend of -£0.8m within Safeguarding Adults. This underspend primarily 
relates to a planned underspend of -£0.750m on the dedicated piece of work to clear the 
DOL’s backlog, as the contract will not now commence until October, meaning that 
£0.750m will be required in 2019-20.   

 
3.5.1.2 Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability and Mental Health 
 

Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability and Mental Health Services are                       
forecasting a net pressure of +£4.8m. 

 

• +£3.4m of this pressure relates to Learning Disability Community Based Services (18+) 
where there is increasing activity within the Supporting Independent Living Service. The 
cost of growing complexity and increasing client numbers is creating the pressure. This 
will partially be offset by the allocation of centrally held funds in the Strategic Management 
and Directorate Budgets (see 3.4.1.1). 

• A forecast pressure of +£0.9m is reported within services for children with a disability (0-
18), which relates to an increase in cost of placements for complex residential placements 
for young children, reflecting the full year effect of increases in both activity and the cost 
of care packages in the final quarter of the previous financial year of £0.9m. The +£0.4m 
pressure on children & young people social care staffing reflects the need for the service 
to maintain low numbers of vacancies and the use of agency to meet the current demands 
for the service. This is partially offset by lower demand for individual services for children  

Page 54



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 

 
in need resulting in a -£0.4m underspend. The pressures on this service are expected to 
continue and will need to be reflected in the 2019-22 MTFP. 

 
3.5.1.3 Older People and Physical Disability 
 

       Older People and Physical Disability services are forecasting a net underspend of -£0.9m, 
which includes several offsetting variances. The most significant variances are detailed 
below. 

 

• Older People (65+) Community Services is reporting an overspend of +£1.1m. This 
position reflects anticipated July budget virements in combination with an adjustment built 
into the position for projected future demographic growth.  

• The pressure in Older People (65+) Community Services is partially offset by a variance 
of -£1.1m against Adaptive & Assistive Technology as efficiencies within the procurement 
and running of this service come into full effect in 18-19. 

• There is also an underspend forecast of -£0.4m against Assessment Staffing and a 
variance of -£0.4m against Carers Support Services. 

• The Older People and Physical Disability forecast assumes that there will be also be 
some increased activity over the winter months.  

 
 3.4.2 Children, Young People and Education Directorate 
  

The initial forecast for Children, Young People and Education Directorate indicates an overall 
pressure of £6.7m, of which £2.5m relates to the Asylum service. Tackling Troubled Families 
has achieved additional income of £0.845m as a result of more successful Payment By 
Results submissions to the DCLG and is therefore requesting roll forward of this surplus into 
the next financial year in order to ensure there is sufficient funding to maintain this programme 
in 2019-20. This roll forward would increase the forecast pressure to £7.6m. 
 

3.4.2.1 Education Services, Planning & Resources 
 

There are a number of pressures from 2017-18 which are continuing into 2018-19, including: 
 

• The Education Psychology Service of +£1.1m, due to increasing statutory workloads 
which is resulting in the continual use of agency staff to cover staff vacancies and the 
need to offer enhanced salary packages to attract and retain permanent staff. In addition, 
as the service focuses on meeting its statutory responsibilities, it is temporarily ceasing 
traded activities leading to a shortfall in income; 

• +£0.2m general shortfall in traded income for emergency planning; 

• +£1.3m support of children with Special Education Needs (SEN). The pressure is 
resulting from the increasing provision of therapy services and higher demand for 
statutory assessments, along with additional payments to reflect the greater complexity 
of needs of the pupils placed in our special schools and specialist resource provision; 

• There is a risk in the deliverability of the £2m Integration saving, due to a delay in the 
appointment of senior posts. We are continuing to look at short term options but at this 
stage we only have plans in place to deliver +£1m.  We are confident that the full saving 
will be delivered in 2019-20. 

 
Where the demands and subsequent financial pressures are expected to continue into 2019-
20, this is being highlighted in the medium-term plan submission. 

 
 
 

Page 55



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 

 
3.4.2.2    Specialist Children’s Services (excluding Asylum) 
 

 The Specialist Children’s Service is forecasting a breakeven position, however this is formed 
from a number of compensating variances. The Care Leavers Service is forecasting a 
pressure of £0.7m resulting from the need to recruit additional staff and use of agency to meet 
the current demand of supporting citizen children.  This also includes the anticipated impact 
of new legislation requiring local authorities to continue to offer support to young people up 
to the age of 25. The impact of this new legislation is expected to be ongoing and will increase 
in future years.  

 
             This pressure is offset by anticipated underspends on the safeguarding service and lower 

unit costs across adoption & special guardianship orders partially resulting from the full year 
effect of the means-testing which was introduced in 2017-18.  

 
3.4.2.3 Specialist Children’s Services – Asylum Seekers: 
  

The pressure on the Asylum Service is expected to continue, with an estimate of +£2.5m 
shortfall in grant income based on a number of assumptions.  The Home Office have recently 
confirmed in a letter to the Leader (dated 18 July 2018) that there has been a delay in 
completing their review of Local Authority funding rates.  As such the Home Office have 
confirmed that whilst the review is ongoing, the current rates we receive will continue to be 
paid.  
 
Negotiations continue with the Home Office to recover the shortfall in funding for this service 
over recent years. 

 
  The main variances for the Asylum service are: 

 

• -£0.4m surplus in grant income from supporting under 16 year olds. This is in line with 
previous years and is normally used to offset any shortfalls in grant relating to 16-17 year 
olds and 18+ care leavers.  

• +£0.7m shortfall in grant income for supporting 16-17 year olds. There is still a number of 
children placed in higher cost placements that arrived before the age of 16, which have 
chosen to remain in their current placements. Attempts to move any individual who is 
settled in their placement is likely to result in legal challenge. This pressure is less than 
the previous year as it is assumed new 16-17 year olds will be placed in lower cost 
supported accommodation settings. 

• +£1.2m shortfall in grant income for supporting care leavers (18+). Historically, the grant 
rate has not been sufficient to recover the costs associated with supporting this age 
group. Work is progressing to ensure care leavers are applying for both job seekers 
allowance and housing benefit where eligible to do so. 

• +£0.7m shortfall in grant income to support the National Transfer Scheme Reception 
Centre. The pressure on this service has increased since 2017-18 as the number of new 
UASC arrivals has reduced leading to a reduction in the total grant received to run this 
service and therefore a greater overall shortfall in funding.  

• +£0.5m costs associated with children who are presented to us as Asylum Children that 
are deemed not to be eligible for the Home Office Grant (referred to as ineligible children). 

 
3.4.3       Growth, Environment and Transport 
 

The overall position for the Directorate, is a forecast variance of +£1.4m, with +£2.5m of 
pressures being partially offset by forecast underspends of -£1.1m.  

 

Page 56



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 
 

 
3.4.4.1 Environment, Planning & Enforcement 

 
Public Protection is forecasting a pressure of +£0.8m relating primarily to the Coroner’s 
service of +£0.6m and Community Wardens of +£0.2m. Within this is a contractual pressure 
of some +£0.3m (full year effect £0.4m) relating to body removals with the contract due for 
re-tender in July. Options to mitigate this pressure or deliver the service in a different way 
are currently being explored. The remaining Coroner’s pressures relate to increasing 
pathology, post mortem, toxicology and body storage costs - due to a rising population and 
legislative changes – offset by adjustments for income and the Medical Examiner budget. 

 
3.4.4.2 Highways, Transportation and Waste 

 
There is an overall pressure within Waste Facilities & Recycling Centres of +£0.6m despite 
the forecast volume of waste being -9,500 tonnes below budgeted levels. Increases in 
Materials Recycling Facilities (MRF) costs since the budget was set has led to a pressure of 
+£0.8m. Reduced paper and card waste income (-5,300 tonnes) has left an income shortfall 
of +£0.3m, whilst additional composted waste of +7,500 tonnes has added a further +£0.4m 
to the forecast. In part these specific pressures have been offset by a reduction of -4,400 
tonnes of recycling credits of -£0.4m; the pressures are further offset by -£0.7m savings as 
the budget was built based on certain tonnage levels being disposed of in different ways, 
each with their own unit costs and indexation levels, and this forecast shows slight variances 
to the budgeted activity levels. Other minor variances make up the balance of +£0.2m. 

 
The above pressures are more than offset as Residual Waste is forecasting a significant 
underspend of -£0.9m. Of this -£0.7m is due to a predicted volume variance of -5,900 tonnes 
across Waste to Energy and Waste Treatment Final Disposal contracts. An additional -
£0.1m of trade waste income is being forecast along with -£0.1m of other small variances. 

 
3.4.5       Strategic and Corporate Services 

 
  The overall variance reflected in Appendix 1 for the directorate is a pressure of +£1.5m which 

includes variances of +£0.7m for EODD and +£0.7m for   Infrastructure, together with other 
smaller variances totaling +£0.1m.   

 
3.4.5.1  Engagement, Organisation Design and Development 

  
The pressures in EODD are made up of +£0.4m relating to the Contact Centre & Digital Web 
Services budget set in 2015 using a transformation plan suggested by Agilisys, predicting 
that the number of calls and average call duration would fall significantly. Although the call 
volumes and times have reduced, this is not in line with the original budgeted plan, hence 
resulting in a budget pressure. The commissioners of this service, together with Agilisys, are 
working with directorate services to get these figures reduced further. The remainder of the 
divisional variance +£0.3m relates to staffing overspends due to re-phased plans for 
restructuring. The Division is currently working on management action to mitigate this 
position. 

 
3.4.5.2 Infrastructure 

 
For the Infrastructure budgets the variance of +£0.7m is largely due to Property related 
services. Within this, the largest single variance is a forecast pressure of +£0.3m for 
Oakwood House where income is expected to be below budget. The service is working on 
potential strategies to improve the situation going forward. There is a variance of +£0.1m on 
Education legal fees, where a change in accounting treatment relating to the use of capital  

Page 57



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 
 

 
grant funding on this demand led budget, has created this pressure. The remaining variance 
is made up of many smaller variances all individually under £0.1m. 
 

3.4.5.3 Strategic Commissioning including Public Health 
 
Overall Public Health is forecasting a small underspend of -£0.1m which will be transferred 
to the ring-fenced reserve. Several Key Service budget lines are showing variances of more 
than £0.1m which require explanation.  
 
Public Health - Children's Programme is forecasting a pressure of +£0.3m relating to 
increased school health costs referred to above of +£0.1m. In addition, the pressure on oral 
health of +£0.1m reported last month continues with the budget remaining within Public 
Health - Advice and Other Staffing, although the latter continues to report an offsetting 
underspend. Other minor variances add up to a further +£0.1m pressure. 
 
The Public Health - Sexual Health budget is reporting a pressure of +£0.2m resulting from 
increased contraceptive costs.   
 
The two pressures above are largely offset by an underspend of -£0.5m in Public Health - 
Advice and Other Staffing; in part this relates to oral health as stated above of -£0.1m.  In 
addition, there are a number small underspends which make up the balance of the 
underspend, primarily campaigns of-£0.3m and workforce development of -£0.1m. 
 
A minor -£0.1m underspend against Public Health - Healthy Lifestyles leaves the service 
reporting a small underspend overall. 
 

3.4.5.4 Other Divisions within the Directorate have variances, all of which are under £0.1m. 
 
3.4.6      Financing Items  
 

A £2.3m underspend reflects additional retained Business Rates levy for 2017-18 above the 
debtor raised and the S31 grant reconciliation for 2017-18.  Exact figures will not be known 
until the autumn. 

 
3.5 Schools delegated budgets: 
 
 The schools delegated budget reserves are currently forecast to end the financial year in 

surplus by £21.1m, compared to £22.5m in the May report. This is made up of a forecast 
surplus of £31.3m on individual maintained school balances, a surplus of £0.9m on the 
schools’ apprenticeship levy reserve and a deficit on the central schools’ reserve of 
£11.1m.  The table below provides the detailed movements on each reserve: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 
 

 

 

Individual 
School 
Reserves 
(£m) 

Central 
Schools 
Reserve 
(£m) 

Apprenticeship 
Levy Reserve 
(£m) 

Total School 
Reserves 
(£m) 

Balance bfwd 31.315 (2.155) 0.855 30.015 

Forecast movement in reserves: 

Academy conversions and 
closing school deficits 0.007 (1.200)   (1.193) 

Contribution to capital 
broadband   (1.000)   (1.000) 

School Growth   4.402   4.402 

High Needs   (9.419)   (9.419) 

Various   (0.028)   (0.028) 

Overspend on Central DSG 
budgets   (1.673)   (1.673) 

Forecast reserve balance 31.322 (11.073) 0.855 21.104 

Note: a negative figure indicates a draw down from reserves/deficit 
 
The Schools’ delegated budget is currently showing a pressure of £4.5m. 

  
3.6 Table 2: Performance of our wholly owned companies 
 

 
 
4. REVENUE BUDGET VIREMENTS/CHANGES TO BUDGETS 
 

4.1 All changes to cash limits are in accordance with the virement rules contained within the 
constitution, with the exception of those cash limit adjustments which are considered 
“technical adjustments” i.e. where there is no change in policy, including the allocation of 
grants and previously unallocated budgets where further information regarding allocations 
and spending plans has become available since the budget setting process.  

   
5. SUMMARISED CAPITAL MONITORING POSITION 
 

5.1 There is a reported variance of -£40.444m on the 2018-19 capital budget (excluding schools 
and PFI).  This is made up of +£0.573m real variance and -£41.017m rephasing. Headline 
variances are detailed below by Directorate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dividends/Contributions (£m) Budget Forecast From trading surplus from reserves

Commercial Services 4.400 4.400 4.400

GEN2 0.983 0.983 0.983

Page 59



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 
 

 
5.2 Table 3: Directorate capital position 

 
 
5.3 Capital budget monitoring headlines  
 

The real variances over £0.100m and rephasing variances over £1.000m are as follows:
  

5.3.1 Children, Young People and Education 
 

• Modernisation Programme: Real variance of +£0.575m to be funded by additional 

developer contributions and grant. 

 
5.3.2     Adult, Social Care & Health 

 

• Home Support Fund & Equipment.  Real underspend of -£0.217m.  This is a reactive 

budget and is subject to in year fluctuations.  The current forecast shows a decrease the 

revenue contributions required. 

  
5.3.3     Growth, Environment & Transport 

5.3.3.1   Highways, Transportation & Waste 

• Highway Major Enhancement: Real variance of +£2.100m.  This is to reflect additional 
money agreed for potholes, which will be funded from revenue. 
 

• Integrated Transport:  Real variance of +£1.593m.  This reflects numerous schemes each 
below £1.000m which are to be funded from developer contributions and external funding. 
 

• National Productivity Investment Fund: Rephasing of -£3.492m.  Design work is to be 
completed by the end of the year, with a commencement date of summer 2019.  There 
was a delay in obtaining survey data on the HE network therefore the forecast has been 
reprofiled. 

 

• Rathmore Road Link: Real variance of -£0.477m.  The forecast underspend is due to 
some of the key risks not materialising.  Any underspend of the grant must be repaid to 
the Kent Thameside Strategic Transport Programme. 

 
 

2018-19 

Working 

Budget

2018-19 

Variance

Real 

variance

Re-

phasing 

variance

£m £m £m £m

Children, Young People & Education 92.673 -1.618 -1.618 0.000

Adult, Social Care & Health 9.375 -1.010 -0.217 -0.793 

Growth, Environment & Transport 154.488 -35.313 2.675 -37.988 

Strategic & Corporate Services 27.122 -2.503 -0.267 -2.236 

TOTAL 283.658 -40.444 0.573 -41.017

Directorate

Page 60



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 
 

 

• Kent Thameside Strategic Transport Programme: Rephasing of -£2.762m.  the profiling 
for the Strategic Transport Infrastructure Programme (STIP) contribution to the Bean and 
Ebbsfleet scheme is an initial estimate and will need to be revised as the development 
progresses. 

 

• Thanet Parkway: Rephasing of -£2.077m.  Due to addressing design changes following 
the public consultation in 2017, led to delays in submitting the planning application.  There 
has also been a need to explore options to complete the funding package before the 
project can be progressed beyond outline design. 

 

• Open Golf: Real underspend of -£0.735m and rephasing of -£1.376m.  The budget has 
been reduced due to a redesign of the platform extension materials, and Network Rail 
are undertaking the power upgrade via internal funding.  The rephasing reflects 
amendments to the original profile of spend. 

 

• A28 Chart Road: Rephasing of -£9.747m. The security bond required to safeguard KCC’s 
forward funding of the scheme has not been confirmed to date, therefore the scheme has 
been reprofiled to future years.   

 

• Maidstone Integrated Transport: Rephasing of -£3.576m.  There have been delays to this 
project, including construction, therefore more realistic programming has been carried 
out.  This may change once agreements have been reached for particular locations. 

 

• Dartford Town Centre: Rephasing of -£3.330m.  This project is being managed by a third 
party.  Delays in development and procurement have caused the spend to be reprofiled 
over future years. 

 

• A2 off slip Wincheap: Rephasing of -£1.799m.  This project is managed by a third party 
and has been reprofiled according to the Local Growth Fund profile. 

 
5.3.3.2   Environment, Planning and Enforcement and Libraries, Registration and Archives 

 

• There are no variances that require reporting. 
 
5.3.4      Strategic & Corporate Services 
 

• Dover Discovery Centre:  rephasing of £1.636m into 2019-20.  This is due to ongoing 
definition of the master planning for integration with the wider Dover Strategy.  The project 
will now follow a formal project governance structure, with sign-off of RIBA stage 0 
(strategic definition) expected in July 18, and all sectional completions by 2020.  

 

• Invicta Car Park: forecast real underspend of £0.293m, due to tenders coming in lower 
than expected. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 
 

 
5.4 Cash Limit Adjustments 
 

 To note: 

Directorate Project Year Amount 
£m 

Reason 

GET Highway Major 
Maintenance 

2018-19 +2.100 Additional funding 
agreed from revenue 

CYPE Modernisation 
Prog 

2018-19 +0.225 Additional developer 
contributions 

CYPE Modernisation 
Prog 

2018-19 +0.350 Additional grant 

 
6. CONCLUSIONS 

 

6.1 It is not unusual at this point in the financial year for the revenue position to show an 
overspend. However, the forecasts show the majority of the £50.2m savings are on track to 
be delivered and the intention remains that where delivery proves to be unlikely, equivalent 
savings elsewhere within the relevant Directorate will be made as appropriate.  It is clear that  
plans still need to be put in place to reduce the forecast pressure. Considering there is still a 
forecast pressure of £8.455m (including roll forwards), of which the majority falls within the 
Children, Young People and Education directorate, there will need to be a range of potential 
mitigations in order to reduce and then eliminate this forecast pressure. We cannot, under 
any circumstances, afford to enter 2019-20 with an underlying problem. 

 
7. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Cabinet is asked to: 
 

7.1 Note the forecast revenue budget monitoring position for 2018-19 and capital budget 
monitoring position for 2018-19 to 2020-21, and that the forecast pressure on the revenue 
budget needs to be eliminated as we progress through the year. 

 
8. CONTACT DETAILS 

Head of 
Finance 
(Operations) 
 
 
Head of 
Finance 
(Policy, 
Planning & 
Strategy: 

Cath Head 
Head of Finance (Operations) 
03000 416934 
Cath.Head@kent.gov.uk 
 
Dave Shipton 
Head of Finance (Policy, Planning & Strategy  
03000 419418 
dave.shipton@kent.gov.uk 
 

Report 
Authors: 

Emma Feakins 
Chief Accountant 
03000 416082 
 emma.feakins@kent.gov.uk 

 Jo Lee/Julie Samson 
Capital Finance Manager 
03000 416939 / 03000 416950 
joanna.lee@kent.gov.uk 
julie.samson@kent.gov.uk 
 

Page 62

mailto:Cath.Head@kent.gov.uk
mailto:dave.shipton@kent.gov.uk
mailto:emma.feakins@kent.gov.uk
mailto:joanna.lee@kent.gov.uk
mailto:julie.samson@kent.gov.uk


  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Breakdown of Directorate Monitoring Position 
 

 
   

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets - Adults

Additional Adult Social Care Allocation 6.1 0.0 6.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Budgets and Savings Plans to be allocated (ASCH) -1.1 -0.5 -1.6 -2.7 0.0 -2.7 0.0

Safeguarding Adults 3.9 -0.2 3.7 -0.8 0.0 -0.8 -0.4

Community Based Preventative Services - Other Adults 0.6 -0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Housing Related Support - Other Adults 0.2 -0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Strategic Management & Directorate Support 31.8 -4.6 27.1 -0.9 0.0 -0.9 -0.8

Total - Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets (ASCH) 41.5 -6.1 35.3 -4.4 0.0 -4.4 -1.2

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability & Mental Health

Adult Learning & Physical Disability Pathway - Residential Care Services 77.5 -6.3 71.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1

Adult Learning & Physical Disability Pathway - Community Based Services 97.8 -7.6 90.2 3.4 0.0 3.4 -0.2

Adult Learning Disability - Assessment Service 5.5 -0.2 5.3 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1

Adult Mental Health - Residential Care Services 12.7 -0.8 11.9 0.4 0.0 0.4 0.0

Adult Mental Health - Community Based Services 6.2 -0.7 5.5 0.3 0.0 0.3 0.2

Adult Mental Health - Assessment Services 10.0 -0.5 9.5 -0.2 0.0 -0.2 0.1

Community Based Preventative Services - Learning Disability & Mental Health 6.0 -3.5 2.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Carers Support (Learning Disability & Mental Health) 2.8 -0.2 2.7 -0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.1

Housing Related Support (Learning Disability & Mental Health) 2.3 0.0 2.3 -0.3 0.0 -0.3 0.0

Looked After Children (with Disability) - Care & Support 11.9 -2.5 9.4 1.3 0.0 1.3 0.3

Children in Need (Disability) - Care & Support 6.9 -0.1 6.9 -0.5 0.0 -0.5 0.0

Disabled Children & Young People Service (0-25 LD & Complex PD) - 

Assessment Service 6.0 0.0 6.0 0.4 0.0 0.4
-0.2

Divisional & Directorate Support 5.9 -0.3 5.7 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Budgets and Savings Plans to be allocated (LDMH) -0.4 0.0 -0.4 0.4 0.0 0.4 0.0

Total - Disabled Children, Adult Learning Disability & Mental Health 251.1 -22.6 228.5 4.8 0.0 4.8 0.1

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Older People & Physical Disability

Adult Physical Disability - Residential Care Services 13.7 -2.1 11.6 0.2 0.0 0.2 -1.6

Adult Physical Disability - Community Based Services 24.4 -3.5 20.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.2

Older People - Residential Care Services 117.2 -58.4 58.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6

Older People - Community Based Services 69.3 -36.7 32.7 1.1 0.0 1.1 1.5

Community Based Preventative Services - Older People & Physical Disability 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Adaptive & Assistive Technology 11.4 -6.8 4.6 -1.1 0.0 -1.1 0.3

Carers Support (Older People & Physical Disability) 2.1 -1.3 0.8 -0.4 0.0 -0.4 0.1

Housing Related Support (Older People & Physical Disability) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Older People & Physical Disability Assessment Services 28.6 -2.4 26.2 -0.4 0.0 -0.4 0.2

Children in Need (Disability) - Assessment Services 0.4 0.0 0.4 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Divisional Management & Support Costs (including savings yet to be 

allocated) 0.7 -0.1 0.6 -0.3 0.0 -0.3
-0.2

Budgets and Savings Plans to be allocated (OPPD) -2.3 0.0 -2.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 -1.5

Total - Older People & Physical Disability 265.5 -111.2 154.3 -0.9 0.0 -0.9 -0.8

Total - Adult Social Care & Health 558.1 -140.0 418.1 -0.5 0.0 -0.5 -1.9

Adult Social Care & Health

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Page 63



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 

        Appendix 1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets - CYPE

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets 8.2 -3.6 4.5 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

Budget & Saving Plans to be allocated (CYPE) -2.3 0.0 -2.3 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0

Total - Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets (CYPE) 5.9 -3.6 2.3 1.1 0.0 1.1 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Education Services Planning & Resources

Special Educational Needs 63.9 -63.1 0.7 1.3 0.0 1.3 0.0

Early Years Education 65.5 -65.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Home to School & College Transport 39.6 -3.7 35.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Fair Access & Planning Services 2.9 -2.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Education Services to be provided by the Education Services Company 4.2 -1.0 3.2 1.1 0.0 1.1 0.0

Community Learning & Skills (CLS) 12.6 -13.8 -1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Education Services & Planning Resources Management & Divisional Support 2.0 -1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other School Services 38.4 -40.3 -1.9 1.7 0.0 1.7 0.0

Total - Education Services Planning & Resources 229.1 -191.3 37.8 4.1 0.0 4.1 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Quality & Standards

Education Services to be provided by the Education Services Company 18.0 -15.1 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Quality & Standards 18.0 -15.1 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Early Help & Preventative Services

Early Help & Preventative Services 20.9 -12.0 8.9 -1.0 0.0 -1.0 -1.0

Children's Centres 7.6 -3.7 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Youth Services 6.6 -2.5 4.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1

Pupil Referral Units & Inclusion 4.7 -4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Early Help & Preventative Services Management & Directorate Support 3.7 -2.4 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Early Help & Preventative Services 43.5 -25.5 18.1 -0.9 0.0 -0.9 -1.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Specialist Children's Services

Looked After Children - Care & Support 59.4 -5.0 54.3 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1

Children in Need - Care & Support 2.5 -0.2 2.3 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

Specialist Children's Service - Assessment & Safeguarding Service 50.9 -3.5 47.4 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Adoption Service & Permanency Arrangements 14.8 -0.1 14.7 -0.6 0.0 -0.6 -0.2

Care Leavers Service 6.6 -3.5 3.1 0.7 0.0 0.7 0.0

Asylum 17.9 -17.9 0.0 2.5 0.0 2.5 -0.4

Specialist Children's Service - Management & Support Costs 3.5 -0.3 3.2 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1

Budgets and Savings Plans to be allocated (SCS) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Specialist Children's Services 155.5 -30.4 125.0 2.5 0.0 2.5 -0.4

Total - Children, Young People & Education 452.0 -265.9 186.1 6.7 0.0 6.7 -1.5

Cash Limit Variance

Children, Young People & Education

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Page 64



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 

Appendix 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets 1.4 -0.1 1.4 -0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.4

Budget & Savings Plans to be allocated (GET) -0.7 0.0 -0.7 0.4 0.0 0.4 0.4

Total - Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets (GET) 0.7 -0.1 0.7 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Economic Development

Economic Development 6.4 -3.6 2.8 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1

Arts 1.8 0.0 1.8 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1

Total - Economic Development 8.2 -3.6 4.6 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Highways, Transportation & Waste

Highway Transportation (including School Crossing Patrols) 7.8 -2.3 5.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Highway Asset Management (Roads and Footways) 13.3 0.0 13.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Highway Asset Management (Other) 20.9 -4.1 16.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Subsidised Buses & Community Transport 8.1 -2.1 6.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Concessionary Fares 17.2 0.0 17.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9

Young Person's Travel Pass 15.1 -6.3 8.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.4

Residual Waste 39.4 -0.1 39.3 -0.9 0.0 -0.9 -1.2

Waste Facilities & Recycling Centres 31.6 -1.9 29.7 0.6 0.0 0.6 0.7

Highways, Transport & Waste Management Costs and Commercial 

Operations 7.6 -3.2 4.4 0.5 0.0 0.5 0.5

Total - Highways, Transportation & Waste 161.0 -20.1 140.9 0.3 0.0 0.3 0.3

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Environment, Planning & Enforcement

Public Protection (Enforcement) 13.2 -3.5 9.7 0.8 0.0 0.8 0.8

Environment & Planning 12.1 -7.8 4.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.8

Environment, Planning & Enforcement Management Costs 0.6 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Environment, Planning & Enforcement 25.9 -11.3 14.6 0.8 0.0 0.8 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Libraries, Registration & Archives 15.9 -6.5 9.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1

Total - Growth, Environment & Transport 211.8 -41.6 170.2 1.4 0.0 1.4 0.3

Cash Limit Variance

Growth, Environment & Transport

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Page 65



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 
 

Appendix 1 
 

 
 
 
 

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategic & Corporate Services

Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets (S&CS) 2.8 -4.9 -2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Budgets and Savings Plans to be allocated (S&CS) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Strategic & Corporate Services (excluding Public Health & BSC) 2.8 -4.9 -2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Engagement, Organisation Design & Development

Human Resources Related Services 8.2 -0.9 7.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Customer Contact, Communications & Consultations 6.3 -0.8 5.5 0.7 0.0 0.7 -0.1

Local Member Grants 2.6 0.0 2.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Engagement, Organisation Design & Development 17.1 -1.6 15.4 0.7 0.0 0.7 -0.1

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Finance 16.8 -5.9 10.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

General Counsel 5.2 -0.2 5.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Infrastructure

Property Related Services 35.4 -11.8 23.6 0.7 0.0 0.7 -0.9

ICT Related Services 17.4 -2.4 14.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Infrastructure 52.8 -14.2 38.5 0.7 0.0 0.7 -0.9

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategic Commissioning including Public Health

Strategic Commissioning 11.9 -3.8 8.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Public Health - Children's Programme 31.5 -31.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Public Health - Mental Health, Substance Misuse & Community Safety 16.7 -16.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Public Health - Sexual Health 12.6 -12.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Public Health - Healthy Lifestyles 8.8 -8.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Public Health - Advice & Other Staffing 4.4 -4.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Strategic Commissioning including Public Health 85.9 -77.8 8.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Strategy, Policy, Relationships & Corporate Assurance 2.2 -0.4 1.7 0.1 0.0 0.1 -0.1

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Business Services Centre 23.9 -27.2 -3.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total - Strategic & Corporate Services 206.6 -132.4 74.3 1.5 0.0 1.5 -0.9

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit

Strategic & Corporate Services

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Cash Limit Variance

Variance

Page 66



  BACKGROUND INFORMATION – JUNE MONITORING REPORT 

 
 

 
Appendix 1 
 

 
 
Please note that budgets are held in the financial system to the nearest £100 and hence the figures in 
the table above may not add through exactly due to issues caused by rounding the figures for this 
report. 
 
 

CD Adj
Revised 

Variance
Movement

Gross Income Net Net Net Net Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Financing Items & Unallocated 130.3 -15.6 114.7 -2.3 0.0 -2.3 0.0

TOTAL BUDGET (excluding Schools' Delegated Budgets) 1,558.8 -595.4 963.3 6.9 0.0 6.9 -3.9

Schools' Delegated Budgets 646.4 -646.4 0.0 4.5 0.0 4.6 -2.9

TOTAL BUDGET 2,205.1 -1,241.8 963.3 11.4 0.0 11.4 -6.8

Financing Items

Cash Limit Variance

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Susan Carey – Cabinet Member for Customers, Communications 
and Performance

David Cockburn – Corporate Director, Strategic and Corporate 
Services

To: Cabinet – 24 September 2018

Decision No: N/a

Subject: Quarterly Performance Report, Quarter 1, 2018/19

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: The purpose of the Quarterly Performance Report is to inform Cabinet 
about the key areas of performance for the authority. 

Recommendation(s):  

Cabinet is asked to NOTE the Quarter 1 Performance Report. 

1. Introduction 

1.1. The KCC Quarterly Performance Report for Quarter 1, 2018/19 is attached at 
Appendix 1. 

1.2. The Quarterly Performance Report (QPR) is a key mechanism within the 
Performance Management Framework for the Council. 

1.3. The QPR includes thirty-four (34) Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) where 
results are assessed against Targets set out in Directorate Business Plans at 
the start of the year. 

2. Quarter 1 Performance Report

2.1. Results against Target for KPIs are assessed using a Red/Amber/Green (RAG) 
status. 

2.2. Of the 34 Key Performance Indicators included in the report, the latest RAG 
status are as follows:

 21 are rated Green - target achieved 

 10 are rated Amber - floor standard achieved, target not achieved 

 3 are rated Red – floor standard not achieved

2.3. During the quarter eight indicators had improved results, 10 had no change and 
16 showing a fall in performance.  

Page 69

Agenda Item 6



3. Recommendation(s)

Recommendation(s): 

Cabinet is asked to NOTE the Quarter 1 Performance Report.

4. Contact details

Richard Fitzgerald, 
Business Intelligence Manager, 
Strategic Business Development and Intelligence,
Telephone: 03000 416091
Richard.Fitzgerald@kent.gov.uk

Vincent Godfrey,
Strategic Commissioner
Telephone: 03000 419045
Vincent.Godfrey@kent.gov.uk

Page 70

mailto:Richard.Fitzgerald@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Vincent.Godfrey@kent.gov.uk


Kent County Council

Quarterly Performance Report

Quarter 1

2018/19

Produced by: KCC Strategic Business Development and Intelligence
E-mail: performance@kent.gov.uk
Phone:  03000 416091

Page 71

mailto:performance@kent.gov.uk


Economic Key to KPI Ratings used
This report includes 34 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), where progress is assessed 
against Targets which are set at the start of the financial year through the Council’s 
Directorate Business Plans. Progress against Target is assessed by RAG 
(Red/Amber/Green) ratings. Progress is also assessed in terms of Direction of Travel 
(DoT) through use of arrows.

GREEN Target has been achieved

AMBER Floor Standard* achieved but Target has not been met

RED Floor Standard* has not been achieved

 Performance has improved 

 Performance has worsened 

 Performance has remained the same 

*Floor Standards are set in Directorate Business Plans and if not achieved must result 
in management action.

Key to Activity Indicator Graphs

Alongside the Key Performance Indicators this report includes a number of Activity 
Indicators which present demand levels for services or other contextual information.

Graphs for activity indicators are shown either with national benchmarks or in many 
cases with Upper and Lower Thresholds which represent the range we expect activity 
to fall within. Thresholds are based on past trends and other benchmark information.

If activity falls outside of the Thresholds, this is an indication that demand has risen 
above or below expectations and this may have consequences for the council in terms 
of additional or reduced costs. 

Activity is closely monitored as part of the overall management information to ensure 
the council reacts appropriately to changing levels of demand.

Data quality note
All data included in this report for the current financial year is provisional unaudited 
data and is categorised as management information. All current in-year results may 
therefore be subject to later revision. 

Page 72



(1)

Table of Contents

Executive Summary  (2)

Customer Services   (4)

Economic Development & Communities   (10)

Environment and Transport (15)

Children, Young People and Education (21)

Adult Social Care (34)

Public Health (41)

Corporate Risk Register (44)

Page 73



(2)

Executive Summary

A majority of indicators for Quarter 1 are rated as Green, on or ahead of target. Eight 
indicators were improving, with seventeen showing a decline in performance.

G A R   

Customer Services 1 2 1 2
Economic Development & Communities 1 1 2
Environment and Transport 6 1 3 2
Children, Young People and Education 6 5 2 3 3 7
Adult Social Care 3 1 1 1 4
Public Health 4 1 1 1 3

TOTAL 21 10 3 8 10 16

Customer Services - Satisfaction with Contact Point advisors was above target and 
the percentage of phone calls answered improved to be just below target. The 
percentage of complaints dealt with on time remained just below target. Phone call 
volumes were 4.3% higher than the same time last year.

Economic Development & Communities – Jobs created and safeguarded from 
Regional Growth Fund loan schemes since 2012 increased to 4,192 jobs. The No Use 
Empty programme, which returns long term empty domestic properties into active use, 
continues to deliver ahead of target. Library visits and book issues were within 
expected levels for the quarter. Economic indicators remain positive with economic 
activity levels being high. Housing delivery in the county continues to be around 7,000 
new dwellings a year, now sustained at this level for three years.

Environment and Transport – Core service delivery for Highways maintenance was 
above target for all four indicators with demand for works still above expected levels for 
the time of year, due to the impact of the severe winter weather earlier in the year. The 
percentage of municipal waste diverted from landfill at 99% continues to exceed target. 
The council continues to reduce its Greenhouse gas emissions supported by 
programmes such as LED Streetlight conversions.

Education – The percentage of schools which are good or outstanding is at 91%, and 
for Early Years settings this is 96%.  NEET figures for Young People increased and the 
target was not met. Provisional data for apprenticeship starts were below target for the 
completed academic year, following national trends and with the impact of the 
apprenticeship levy not yet felt. Completion of Education, Health and Care Plans 
(EHCPs) in timescale remains below floor standard reflecting continued increase in 
demand for assessments over the last year. The increase in demand for EHCP 
assessments is significant with a 30% increase in the last twelve months.

Page 74



(3)

Integrated Children’s Services  - Outcomes achieved for Early Help cases improved 
and was above target. The number of pupil exclusions and first-time entrants to the 
youth justice system both reduced and were head of target. Repeat referrals to 
children’s social care increased but were at the target level. Adoption timeliness 
remained ahead of target. The percentage of children in care with 3 or more 
placements remained slightly behind target, with the percentage of foster care 
placements with KCC in-house fostering or friends and relatives narrowly missing 
target. The percentage of Care Leavers in education, employment and training met 
target. Referrals for children’s social care and the number of children with child 
protection plans have declined and are in line with the national average with the 
number of children in care remaining stable.

Adult Social Care – Contacts resolved at first point of contact remains above target. 
Clients referred to enablement reduced slightly and was below the increased target for 
this year. The percentage of clients still independent after an enablement service 
continued to exceed target. The number of admissions to residential and nursing care 
has increased with an increase in nursing home admissions to support people following 
hospital admissions. The number of people experiencing a delay in transfer of care 
from hospital continues to be an on-going pressure with numbers currently at similar 
levels to last year. The number of safeguarding concerns received increased slightly in 
the quarter.

Public Health – The number of Health Checks completed was below target, with new 
IT systems impacting on the number of invites issued and appointments booked. Initial 
problems with the new systems have been resolved and numbers are expected to 
improve next quarter. The number of universal checks delivered by the Health Visiting 
service remained  above target and clients offered appointments to GUM services to be 
seen within 48 hours remained at 100%. Numbers successfully completed drug and 
alcohol treatment improved and the target was achieved.

Page 75



(4)

Customer Services 
Cabinet Member Susan Carey
Corporate Director Amanda Beer

GREEN AMBER RED   
KPI Summary 1 2 1 2

Customer contact through Contact Point (KCC’s call centre) and digital channels is 
provided by our strategic partnership with Agilisys. 

Satisfaction with Contact Point advisors remained high in the quarter and exceeded the 
target. Performance for the percentage of calls answered by Contact Point improved to 
be just below target.

Complaints responded to in timescale remained just below target, with 84% of 
complaints responded to in expected timescale. 

Overall call volumes handled by Contact Point were 3.9% lower than last quarter, but 
4.3% higher than the same period last year. This is the first time the latest quarter has 
exceeded the same period the previous year for over 3 years, with continued high 
volume of calls due to the severe late winter weather being a contributing factor. 

Call volumes handled in the last 12 months were 3.8% lower than the previous year. 
There have been reductions in routine and simple call types which are increasingly 
handled through online and automated methods. Contact Point continues to focus on 
more complex calls requiring personal attention and average call time has remained 
similar to the last quarter at 4 minutes 25 seconds.

Completion of transactions on the KCC web-site reduced from the record high volumes 
in the last quarter to move within expected levels.

Page 76



(5)

Key Performance Indicators

Percentage of callers to Contact Point who rated the advisor who dealt with 
their call as good

GREEN


Current: 98% Target: 95% Previous: 98%

Percentage of phone calls to Contact Point which were answered AMBER


Current: 94% Target: 95% Previous: 93%

Percentage of complaints responded to within timescale AMBER


Current: 84% Target: 85% Previous: 84%

Page 77



(6)

Activity indicators

Number of phone calls responded to by Contact Point - by quarter

Average call time with Contact Point - by quarter

Number of visits to the KCC web-site (in thousands) – by quarter

Number of complaints received each quarter

Page 78



(7)

Customer Services – Contact Activity

Number of phone calls, e-mails and post responded to by Contact Point 
(thousands)

Contact Point dealt with 4% fewer total contacts than the previous quarter, but 6% 
more than for the same period last year. The 12 months to June 2018 saw 2% fewer 
contacts responded to than in the 12 months to June 2017. 

Service area Jul -
Sep

Oct-
Dec

Jan-
Mar

Apr-
Jun

Yr to 
Jun 18

Yr to 
Jun 17

Adult Social Care 33 31 33 32 129 137
Highways 22 18 23 23 86 91
Specialist Children's Services 22 22 22 23 89 89
Blue Badges 11 11 12 13 47 41
Schools and Early Years 14 11 10 11 45 51
Transport Services 10 7 13 10 39 31
Libraries and Archives 12 10 12 9 43 43
Registrations 9 8 9 8 35 37
Speed Awareness 7 7 5 5 24 21
Adult Education 8 5 5 5 23 27
Waste and Recycling 4 3 3 4 14 14
Other Services 3 3 3 4 13 14
Main line 5 2 3 3 13 25
KSAS* 2 2 2 2 8 11
Total Calls (thousands) 162 138 157 151 608 632
e-mails handled 8 7 10 9 34 27
Postal applications 7 8 9 9 33 32
Total Contacts (thousands) 177 153 176 169 675 692

* Kent Support and Assistance Service

Numbers are shown in the 1,000’s, and will not add exactly due to rounding. 
Calculations in commentary are based on unrounded numbers so will not precisely 
match changes in table.

Out of hours calls are allocated 75% to Specialist Children Services, 15% for Highways 
and 10% Other. 

Postal volumes mainly relate to Blue Badges and Concessionary Fares 
correspondence.

Page 79



(8)

Customer Services – Complaints monitoring

The number of complaints received in the quarter showed a 27% increase on the 
previous quarter and was 38% higher than the corresponding quarter last year. Over 
the last 12 months there has been a 14% increase compared to the previous year.

The increase may reflect that all services are now using the central feedback system. 
We have also made it easier for people to offer us their feedback online and training 
has been rolled out to help staff identify feedback appropriately. 

Service 12 mths to 
Jun 17

12 mths to 
Jun 18

Quarter to 
Mar 18 

Quarter to 
Jun 18 

Highways, Transportation 
and Waste Management 1,555 1,854 399 590

Adult Social Services 636 663 180 169

Specialist Children’s Services 278 454 110 151

Education & Young People’s 
Services 176 280 46 98

Libraries, Registrations and 
Archives 256 303 86 76

Strategic and Corporate 
Services 448 245 64 42

Environment, Planning and 
Enforcement & Economic 
Development 

65 99 22 36 

Adult Education 73 83 28 21

Total Complaints 3,487 3,981 935 1,183

Page 80



(9)

Customer Services – Digital Take-up

The table below shows the digital/online or automated transaction completions for Key 
Service Areas.

Transaction type Online
Jul 17 – 
Sep 17

Online
Oct 17 – 
Dec 17

Online
Jan 18 - 
Mar 18

Online
Apr 18 - 
Jun 18

Total 
Transactions 

Last 12 Months

Renew a library book* 74% 73% 75% 76% 1,363,999

Report a Highways Fault 37% 42% 51% 45% 116,563

Apply for a Young 
Person’s Travel Pass 79% 84% 91% 76% 39,829

Book a Speed 
Awareness Course 81% 78% 79% 78% 36,859

Apply for or renew a 
Blue Badge 47% 50% 52% 63% 34,791

Book a Birth Registration 
appointment 75% 73% 71% 72% 19,447

Apply for a 
Concessionary Bus Pass 15% 17% 30% 25% 16,525

Highways Licence 
applications 61% 52% 73% 79% 5,967

Apply for a HWRC 
recycling voucher 97% 98% 97% 98% 5,192

Report a Public Right of 
Way Fault 86% 85% 95% 89% 2,319

* Library issue renewals transaction data is based on individual loan items and not 
count of borrowers.

Page 81



(10)

Economic Development & Communities
Cabinet Members Mark Dance, Mike Hill
Corporate Director Barbara Cooper

GREEN AMBER RED   
KPI Summary 1 1 2

Support for business 
Since April 2012, Kent’s Regional Growth Fund (RGF) programmes, have committed 
£56.3 million to provide investments for Kent businesses. As a result, over 240 
businesses in Kent and Medway have so far created 2,840 jobs and safeguarded 1,352 
making a total of 4,192 jobs to the end of June 2018. 

In January 2017 the Kent and Medway Business Fund (KMBF) was launched using the 
repaid loans from the original RGF programmes.  Round 1 of the KMBF has committed 
£1.4 million to 11 businesses and Round 2 committed an additional £2.8 million to 18 
businesses, with the expectation of creating 277 jobs.

The Kent Life Sciences Equity Fund was launched in March, which is a £5 million Fund 
with the first investment now made in a company to be based at the Kent Medical 
Campus site in Maidstone. 

Converting derelict buildings for new housing
In the first quarter 118 long term empty properties were made fit for occupation through 
the No Use Empty (NUE) Programme, with 5,583 modernised since the Programme 
began in 2005.  Total NUE investment currently stands at £49.6 million (£22.3 million 
from KCC recycled loans and £27.3 million from public/private sector leverage). 
Demand for the loan scheme remains strong in the coastal areas of Kent.  NUE 
presented at the Westminster Briefing Bringing Empty Homes Back in Use in July 2018 
to share best practice.

NUE were awarded an additional £1 million Growing Place Funds for use from 2018/19 
to bring empty commercial space back into use as mixed commercial and residential 
accommodation, with £500k available for this financial year. So far £410k has been 
allocated to fund 3 projects in coastal towns which will yield 5 commercial and 16 new 
residential units.

Infrastructure 
Between 2015/16 and 2020/21, £147m of funding is being allocated to infrastructure 
projects in Kent by the South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP), of which 
£123m is intended for transport schemes. 

In this last quarter, the SELEP has approved the business cases and allocated Local 
Growth Funding for the following schemes:

 £4.3m to support the Dartford Town Centre Transformation Programme.
 £2.7m to support the delivery of the Maidstone Integrated Transport (Phase 2) 

scheme.
In addition, Local Growth Funding has been secured to help finance the transport 
improvements at Sandwich Railway Station, to facilitate The Open Golf Championship 
at Royal St George’s in 2020.

Page 82



(11)

Broadband
Kent’s Broadband Delivery UK (BDUK) programme has now brought superfast 
broadband to 138,000 properties which would otherwise have had no or slow 
broadband connectivity. Superfast broadband services of at least 24mbps are now 
available to over 95% of homes and businesses in Kent.

We will be launching a Kent Broadband Voucher Scheme in September. This will seek 
to increase the availability of superfast broadband in eligible ‘final 5%’ locations by 
providing broadband vouchers to support the costs of new connectivity. Up to £2.8 
million of funding has been allocated for the Kent Voucher Scheme.

Funding Infrastructure
KCC obtains financial contributions towards KCC services from developers of new 
housing sites. In the first quarter ending June 2018, 23 Section 106 agreements 
were completed and a total of £13.12m was secured.

Section 106 developer contributions secured (£ 000s)

 Jul to Sep 
2017

Sep to 
Dec 2017

Jan to 
Mar 2018

Apr to Jun 
2018

Primary Education 3,354 2,328 9,265 8,176 
Secondary Education 1,551 576 5,393 4,544
Adult Social Care 153 26 189 100
Libraries 210 42 426 201
Community Learning 48 42 108 74
Youth & Community 38 18 74 27
Total 5,357 3,033 15,455 13,122

Secured as % of 
Amount Sought 93% 100% 100% 94%

Libraries, Registration and Archives (LRA)
Tonbridge library re-opened in April following major refurbishment work, with improved 
access via the re-opening of the entrance directly onto the High Street. Swalecliffe 
library also re-opened in April following refurbishment inside and out, responding to 
comments from customers. Seal library has also undergone some building works and 
re-opened in June.

The closures listed above impacted on visitor numbers to libraries which were lower 
than the same time last year. 

The work to implement the Library Extra pilot project at 3 library sites has progressed 
and it is planned that these locations will be offering additional unstaffed opening times 
in September. 

Our online offer continues to grow with an increase in issues on the same quarter last 
year of 24% for e-books, and 111% for e-magazines.  There were over 43,000 issues 
of our new e-newspaper offer which was initially launched in January this year.  Overall 
online contacts increased by 66% with a 42% increase in visits to the website and 
169% increase in social media activity.

Page 83



(12)

The annual email survey of Libraries and Archives customers will take place over the 
summer. Regular satisfaction survey results available so far this year are as follows: 

 Birth and death registration 96% (target 95%)
 Wedding ceremonies 97% (target 95%)

Film Office
In the quarter the film office handled 199 filming requests and 59 related enquiries, with 
160 filming days logged bringing an estimated £550K direct spend into Kent. 
Production highlights include feature films such as Casanova, Pantham, and Sulphur 
and White, TV Drama’s Trollied, music videos and commercials for big brand 
international companies.

Sport and Physical Activity
The Kent School Games Main Finals Day was held in June, with Olympic and 
Paralympic performers Lizzy Yarnold, Millie Knight and Jack Green supporting the day. 
Approximately 1,500 young people participated in a wide range of activities with The 
Games also celebrating its 10th anniversary. In partnership with the Kent Invicta 
Chamber of Commerce, a Business Breakfast for local companies was held as part of 
the Games, in order to secure future support from business. 

As part of our work to support workplace health, The Kent and Medway Business 
Games has also been delivered, with over 120 people from local companies 
participating. This was sponsored by the National Grid and supported by Wellbeing 
People. 

Community Safety
The Community Warden Service has recruited seven Community Wardens who have 
all successfully completed their training and passed their Police accreditation, and all 
are now deployed in the field serving local communities.  A number of Community 
Wardens have recently received awards including the Ashford Borough Council Civil 
Award, The People of Dover Award, Kent association of local councils (KALC) 
Community Award, and the Pride of New Romney Award. 

Resilience and Emergency Planning Service
A total of 95 alerts were received in the quarter by the 24/7 Duty Emergency Planning 
Officer, up from the 61 for the same quarter in 2017 which was associated with intense 
rainfall events in late April and May, which caused sporadic surface water flooding 
across the county.

The service has been involved in some significant pieces of work to ensure the county 
is well prepared for future emergencies. Exercise Shakespeare took place in April, the 
largest terrorist firearms attack exercise to take place in Kent. This has carried out 
overnight at Bluewater shopping centre with over 850 volunteers. Following the Level 2 
nuclear exercise in May, which tested plans for a radiation emergency at Dungeness B, 
the Office for Nuclear Radiation has now confirmed that Kent’s planning is fit for 
purpose. An updated Kent and Medway Offsite Reservoir Inundation Emergency Plan 
has been published, which identifies 60 large raised reservoirs within or adjacent to 
Kent where a dam breach could result in flooding.

Page 84



(13)

Key Performance Indicators

Full time equivalent jobs created/safeguarded through Regional Growth Fund 
loan schemes

AMBER


Current: 4,192 Target:  4,279 Previous: 4,161

Number of homes brought back to market through No Use Empty (NUE) GREEN


Current: 118 Target: 100 Previous: 112

Activity indicators

Average number of visits to Kent libraries per day

Average number of book issues from Kent libraries per day

Page 85



(14)

Percentage of population aged 16 to 64 in employment 
(from the Annual Population Survey)

Percentage of population aged 16 to 64 claiming unemployment benefits 

Business start-ups per 10,000 population aged 18 to 64 

New Dwelling Completions based on energy certificates issued 
(rolling 12-month totals)

Page 86



(15)

 Environment and Transport 
Cabinet Member Mike Whiting
Corporate Director Barbara Cooper

GREEN AMBER RED   
KPI Summary 6 1 3 2

Highways
Performance for the quarter was above target for all four Highways KPIs. 

Service demand was high due to faults relating to the winter weather and the start of 
the grass cutting season.  Requests for faults requiring action customers were at the 
top of seasonal expectations and outstanding faults (work in progress) although 
reduced from last quarter, remains at a high level.  This year’s Pothole Blitz continues 
to deliver at pace to ensure roads are put back in shape after the winter. As a result 
there has been a decrease in pothole faults reported, from over 1,400 per week at a 
peak, down to a more normal 200 reports by the end of June. 

A wash-up review of our winter service has been completed, after one of the worst 
winters for the last 5 years, to see how we can continue to improve delivery and with 
community support keep our roads and footways as safe as we are able to.

The milestone of 100,000 LED streetlight conversions was reached in the quarter with 
work continuing to convert all streetlights.

An analysis of the implications of a national, non-statutory code of practice a ‘Well-
managed Highway Infrastructure’ has been completed and a strategy for implementing 
the findings has been prepared. Our approach to asset management has enabled us to 
obtain Band 3 Incentive Fund rating from the Department for Transport (DfT), which will 
help maximise capital funding for 2018/19 and beyond.  

The KCC Road Safety Team has been recognised nationally for the quality of 
interventions it develops and delivers. The team’s ‘Speak Out’ campaign focuses on 
16-24 year old passengers driven by young drivers and encourages them to vocalise 
when they are feeling unsafe by the standard of driving. The campaign won two First 
Car awards at the Nation Young Driver Focus conference in April. In addition to our 
own programmes of safety education and engineering measures we continue to plan 
and deliver joint interventions following the National Police Chief’s Council, and this 
quarter there is a focus on speed, motorcyclists, and drugs and alcohol.

Transport Strategy
A case has been made to Transport for the South East’s (TfSE) on the importance of 
the need to fund junction improvements on the A249 at Junction 5 of the M2, with the 
project now the second highest priority for early entry into the Government’s new Major 
Road Network (MRN) programme from 2020/21. An announcement about the schemes 
that will initially be funded by Government is expected in the autumn.     

A planning application for the proposed Thanet Parkway station was submitted in May, 
with Network Rail commissioned for the next design stage. 

Page 87



(16)

A submission has been made to the House of Commons Transport Select Committee 
Inquiry into Freight and Brexit, and work is in hand for a response to Highways 
England’s Public Information Exercise on Solutions to Operation Stack, which was 
launched in June. 

We are working closely with a number of Parishes to help develop their prioritised 
‘Highway Improvement Plans’ and there are currently 19 live Parish led schemes being 
delivered. 

A successful bid to the ‘Safer Roads Fund’ from the Department for Transport (DfT) has 
been made and £2.1 million has been awarded for the A252 between Charing and 
Chilham, and £1.5 million for the A290 between Canterbury and Whitstable.  

We continue to engage with stakeholders such as Highways England, to collaboratively 
co-ordinate roadside infrastructure across the national strategic network and the local 
road network which KCC manages. An example is the pilot A2/M2 connected corridor 
programme, working in partnership with DfT, Highways England, and Transport for 
London to facilitate connected vehicle technology along the corridor to Dover, with the 
first technology tests programmed for October 2018. 

Public Transport
The ‘Big Conversation’ programme is being delivered to examine ideas for an 
innovative and sustainable way of providing transport to rural communities in Kent.  
The consultation ran from 13 June to 8 August 2018 and 12 public meetings were held 
across Kent to present initial ideas and provide an opportunity for communities to ask 
questions.

Local Growth Fund Transport Capital Projects
Kent has been awarded £123 million of Government funding from the Local Growth 
Fund (LGF) to support 28 transport projects, with a total capital cost of £322 million.  
One project is for the M20 Junction 10a improvements which is managed by Highways 
England, with total cost of £104 million and a £20 million LGF contribution.  The table 
below shows the overall position for the other 27 transport projects in the programme 
with seven complete and ten substantially under construction. 

There are four schemes currently rated as Red. These are Thanet Parkway which 
currently has a funding gap, the A28 Chart Road scheme which requires a security 
bond before it can progress, the Willington Street/Sutton Road Junction improvements, 
and the A28 Sturry ITP.

LGF Spend Profile 
Year : 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Total

Total Value (£m) 49.6 110.6      52.2       3.9     217.2

LGF funds (£m) 32.8 44.4      24.4       1.9 103.6
Projects 12 8 6 1 27
Complete 4 3 0 0 7
Green (on track) 5 2 3 0 10
Amber (some delays) 3 1 1 1 6
Red (at risk) 0 2 2 0 4

Page 88



(17)

Waste Management
The amount of the county’s municipal waste sent to landfill remains below 1% with the 
remaining amounts being asbestos and certain contaminated wastes which can only be 
treated through deep burial.  

The amount of waste recycled for the county continues to be high and close to 50%. 
Due to the wet weather in April and May followed by very hot temperatures in June, 
green waste sent for composting saw a recent increase. 

We continue to work with district councils to help improve recycling rates from kerbside 
collection, with a focus on reducing the contamination of mixed dry recycling. The 
Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee has endorsed a policy approach of new 
funding arrangements for recognising, rewarding and incentivising district councils for 
improving their kerbside waste recycling performance. 

Current forecast tonnage is 715,000 tonnes which is below the expected and budgeted 
level.  The Allington Waste to energy plant remains stable, with close to 50% of waste 
being converted to electricity which is all the waste that cannot be recycled or treated.

Environment
As part of the Kent Environment Strategy (KES) implementation plan, work continues in  
priority areas which are The Kent and Medway Energy and Low Emissions Strategy, 
and the Kent and Medway Climate Change Risk Assessment, and the Warm Homes 
programme. 

Greenhouse Gas emissions from KCC’s estate continues to reduce with reductions 
ahead of target, with the LED street lighting programme being a primary contributor.

The EU funded LoCASE project has assisted 563 SMEs with a total of £4.1m of match 
funded grants across the South East LEP to date. For this year, the programme has 
delivered energy efficiency projects, low carbon sector support and generated an 
additional £8.7m inward investment in the South East. In addition, 132 new jobs and 35 
new business have been created. 

Strategic Planning and Infrastructure
The Kent and Medway Growth and Infrastructure Framework (GIF) 2018 update has 
been published, providing an up-to-date strategic framework to assess housing and 
economic growth, and the associated infrastructure funding needs for the county up to 
2031, ensuring that KCC is proactively positioned to unlock some of the key barriers to 
sustainable growth. 
 

Page 89



(18)

Key Performance Indicators

Percentage of routine pothole repairs within 28 days GREEN


Current: 95% Target: 90% Previous: 95%

Percentage of routine highway repairs reported by residents completed 
within 28 days 

GREEN


Current: 92% Target: 90% Previous: 93%

Emergency incidents attended within 2 hours of notification GREEN


Current: 99% Target: 98% Previous: 99%

Percentage of satisfied callers for Kent Highways and Transportation, 100 call 
back survey

GREEN


Current: 82% Target: 75% Previous: 85%

Page 90



(19)

Percentage of municipal waste recycled or converted to energy and not 
taken to landfill - rolling 12 months

GREEN


Current: 99% Target: 95% Previous: 99%

Greenhouse Gas emissions from KCC estate (excluding schools) in tonnes – 
rolling 12 months

GREEN


Current: 38,132 Target: 39,100 Previous: 38,795

Page 91



(20)

Activity indicators

Number of Highways enquiries raised for action - by quarter

Highways Open enquiries work in progress (Routine and Programmed works)

Total municipal tonnage collected - rolling 12 months

Page 92



(21)

Children, Young People and Education
Cabinet Member Roger Gough
Corporate Director Matt Dunkley

GREEN AMBER RED   
KPI Summary 6 5 2 3 3 7

Schools
The provisional results for Primary school attainment outcomes in summer 2018 were 
above the national average at all key stages. In the Early Years Foundation Stage 75% 
of children attending a school in Kent achieved a good level of development compared 
to the emerging national figure of 72%. At Key Stage 2, 66% of pupils achieved the 
expected standard in reading, writing and maths compared to the emerging national 
figure of 64%. 

At the end of June, the percentage of Primary schools judged by Ofsted as good or 
outstanding was 93%, with 90% of Secondary schools and 91% of Special schools 
being good or outstanding. 

Overall 505 of the 552 schools in Kent with a current inspection were good or 
outstanding, and 91% of pupils were attending good or outstanding schools. 

We remain determined, working in partnership with schools to continue the positive 
trajectory seen in Kent. Improving outcomes and reducing the performance gaps are at 
the forefront of our work. 

One of the priorities moving forward is to increase the number of schools graded as 
outstanding and moving those who require improvement to become good as quickly as 
possible. Currently 22% of schools in Kent are judged to be outstanding.

Early Years
The percentage of Early Years settings which were rated Good or Outstanding in June 
was 96%, one percentage point below the target. Sustaining this standard whilst also 
increasing the amount of outstanding provision remains a key priority for the Early 
Years and Childcare Service. 

Other priorities include the ongoing delivery of 30 Hours of Free Childcare, working in 
partnership with Children’s Centres to continue to increase the take up of Free Early 
Education places by eligible two-year-olds, increasing the number of children achieving 
a Good Level of Development at the end of the Early Years Foundation Stage, 
narrowing achievement gaps, and increasing the number of Early Years settings 
working within a collaboration. 

The take-up for the free childcare entitlement for eligible two years olds in Summer 
2018 was 61%, which was down from 64% at the same time last year. This reduction is 
Kent wide and work is in place to address this.

Page 93



(22)

Skills and Employability
The June 2018 position for the percentage of 16 and 17 year olds Not in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET) was 3.0%. The three-month rolled average for 
December, January and February, that the DfE use to benchmark local authority 
performance, was 2.6%, which was just off the target of 2.5% and an improvement on 
the 2015/16 outturn of 3.0%. 

Progress continues to be made in improving our understanding of destinations for 
school leavers. This information is not known for 2.8% of young people compared to 
4.1% for the same period last year. 

The number of 16 to 18 year olds who started an apprenticeship was lower this year 
compared to last year with this reduction also seen nationally. The introduction of the 
Apprenticeship Levy has not yet had the expected impact of increasing apprenticeship 
numbers, with delays bringing in the new required standards. 

The Apprenticeship Levy has raised the quality on the standards and expectations for 
apprenticeship schemes and many new standards are being designed to meet the 
expectation of employers. With many new standards now in place is it expected that 
the number of apprentice starts will increase in the new academic year and ensuing we 
see an increase across Kent remains a key priority.
 
Through our Apprenticeship Strategy we are promoting apprenticeships throughout 
Kent to raise the awareness of apprenticeship and increase the number of 
opportunities available.  We continue to develop the offer available from the 
Apprenticeship Kent website and the award winning ‘Made in Kent’ campaign, which 
has resulted in an increase in the number of applicants for apprenticeships made 
through the website. We are currently developing a supported Apprenticeship 
programme route for vulnerable learners with disabilities and disadvantages 

We are working collaboratively with schools, Further Education Colleges and Work 
Based Training providers to develop locally co-ordinated approaches to support 
apprenticeship take-up. 

SEND (Special Educational Need and Disability)
The percentage of new Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within the 
statutory 20 weeks was 49% (810 out of 1,639) against a target of 85%. This is down 
from last quarter and also below national average.

There has continued to be a significant increase in demand for assessments (up 47% 
compared to the previous year) all of which require Educational Psychology (EP) 
assessments. This has led to a backlog which is affecting the EP service’s ability to 
meet demand.
 
There has been an increase of 30% in the number of Education, Health and Care Plans 
(EHCPs) within the past 12-months.  As well as the initial statutory assessment 
process, a child with an EHCP requires ongoing administration through Annual 
Reviews, and the increase in the number of assessments and plans also increases 
ongoing caseloads for SEN staff. The increase in the number of EHCPs has created 
placement pressures within our special schools and Specialist Resource Provision.  
This has resulted in a 25% increase in the number of placements in the independent 
sector resulting in increased pressure on the placement budget.    

Page 94



(23)

School Places and Admissions
For admissions in September 2018, 80% of parents secured their first preference 
secondary school and 90% of families secured their first preference for primary school 
places. In September 2018 there are eight primary schools offering significant numbers 
of extra places, adding 225 Year R places between them.  27 secondary schools have 
made a further 996 Year 7 places available for this September.  Additional places being 
offered will in some cases be temporary.

Across all Kent schools, the net change to the number of places being offered for 
September 2018 entry (compared with September 2017 entry) is an increase of 34 
Year R places (17 schools increasing and 13 schools reducing) and an increase of 99 
Year 7 places (16 schools increasing and 19 schools reducing).  This is because some 
schools which have offered a temporary increase in their intake for one or more 
previous years, are unable to continue to do so and have reverted back to their (lower) 
determined admission numbers.

For 2017/18 across Kent as a whole, the target of maintaining at least 5% surplus 
capacity has been met at both primary and secondary phases. For primary schools, 
there are six districts with less than 5% surplus capacity compared to seven last year. 
For Reception year groups, all districts have at least 5% surplus capacity, a significant 
improvement on eight last year. For secondary schools, all but one district (Canterbury) 
have met the 5% surplus capacity target and for Year 7, four districts have missed the 
target, which is still an improvement on five last year, especially at a time of rising Year 
7 roll numbers.

Service Integration
The Children’s Change Programme is continuing, and the two Directors of Integrated 
Children’s Services took up their posts in August 2018. We are now reviewing the 
analysis and evaluation of the previous integration pilot projects. The pilots have 
provided excellent learning opportunities, and a strong platform for moving forward. 
The results of the pilots will help shape the new model of integrated working to ensure 
we deliver our vision for children and young people in Kent.

Work continues to prepare for the new integrated Front Door combining the Children’s 
Social Work Central Duty Team and the Early Help Triage team, which is scheduled to 
go live on the 1st October 2018.   This will provide a single route into support services at 
intensive level or higher, with a single ‘request for services’ form for schools and other 
agencies to complete. 

Early Help
There were 2,383 cases open to Early Help units, which equates to support for 5,367 
children and young people aged 0 to 17. The percentage of Early Help cases closed 
with outcomes achieved increased from 79% to 81% and is one percentage point 
above the target. 

For Early Help unit cases initiated via an Early Help Notification 86% of cases are 
closed with outcomes achieved, which is above the 80% service standard. Since April a 
new process for Domestic Abuse Notifications triaged as suitable for Early Help has 
been in place with the Front Door to contact these families and explain the Early Help 
offer of support and see how families wish to proceed, which is supporting decision 
making about passing referrals into Early Help.

Page 95



(24)

For permanent exclusions, the rolling 12 months total stands at 45, equating to 0.02% 
of the school population being excluded which is better than the target of 0.03%. Of the 
45 pupils excluded, 19 were from primary schools and 26 from secondary schools. This 
is a decrease on the previous 12 months (July 2016 to June 2017) when 71 pupils were 
excluded. The latest published exclusion data for the academic year 2016/17 shows 
the national rate to be 0.10% which is an increase in exclusions by 0.02.

The number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice system at 269 in the last 12 
months was better than the target of 290, with numbers continuing to reduce each year.

Children’s Social Work -  Staffing and Quality of Practice 
The percentage of case holding social worker posts held by permanent qualified social 
workers decreased in the quarter, from 83% in March 2018 to 81% in June 2018.  The 
percentage of Social Work posts filled by Agency staff remained the same at 12% but 
is significantly lower than the 17% for June 2017. In the latest published figures for 
Agency Social Workers, which is taken from a snapshot as at 30th September 2017, the 
average for England was 15.8% and the published Kent figure for the same period was 
14.1%.

Work continues to refine the programme of audits, with changes to both the process 
and system for recording the on-line audits.  Information gathered from audit 
programmes is used to drive continuous service improvement and these additional 
changes will provide greater alignment between the analysis of data and audit findings, 
enabling improved measurement of any resulting changes to operational practice. 

Children’s Social Work Caseloads
During 2017/18 Children’s social work services experienced an increase in demand 
with 19,670 referrals in the year, compared to 16,193 referrals in 2016/17, an increase 
of 21%.  A high proportion of this increase can be attributed to a 48% increase in 
referrals from Kent Police during the year.  This increase was a result of a restructure of 
Kent Police which placed a greater focus on vulnerability. The first quarter of 2018/19 
has seen a reduction in the overall rate of referrals by 16% when compared to the 
same period last year.  

The rate of re-referrals within 12 months has shown an increase in the quarter, from 
23% to 25% but remains within the target range.  This performance is in line with the 
latest published data for Kent’s statistical neighbours and Local Authorities in the South 
East Region and is 2% above the national average rate for England.

The overall rate of Children in Need cases in Kent per 10,000 of the child population, at 
the end of the quarter was 302.7 which remains below the last published average rate 
for England, which was 330.4 (as at 31st March 2017).

The average caseload for Social Workers remains above the target level and the 
reduction of caseloads continues to a key priority for the service.

Child Protection
There were 1,381 children with child protection plans at the end of June 2018, a 
reduction of 80 from the end of March 2018. The number of children starting a child 
protection plan in the quarter remained at the same level, 313 in Quarter 1 of 2018/19 
compared with 314 in Quarter 4 of 2017/18.  The rate of children with a child protection 

Page 96



(25)

plan per 10,000 of the child population in Kent is 41.5 which is below the last published 
rate of 43.3 for the England average (March 2017). 

The percentage of children becoming subject to a child protection plan for a second or 
subsequent time remains at 20%, which is above the last published average rate for 
England of 19% (for 2016/17).  Plans for those children who have previously been 
subject to a Child Protection Plan are regularly reviewed by the Safeguarding and 
Quality Assurance Unit.

Children in Care
The number of citizen children in care reduced by 33 in the quarter, to 1,389 at the end 
of June 2018.  The number placed with Independent Fostering Agencies at the end of 
the quarter was 174 which was a reduction of 2 from March 2018.  The percentage 
placed in KCC foster care or with family/friends fell by 1% to 84%, taking it below the 
target of 85%.  

Performance against the placement stability measure of 3 or more placements in a 12 
month period remained at 11% which is above the Target of 10% which was set to be 
in line with the average performance for England. 

The number of children in care placed in Kent by other Local Authorities at the end of 
June 2018 was 1,308 which is an increase of 34 from the March 2018 figure of 1,274.  

For children who were adopted in the last 12 months the average number of days 
between coming into care and moving in with their adoptive family was 328 days, which 
is an increase of 5 days compared to the previous quarter. Kent continues to 
outperform the nationally set target of 426 days.

Adolescents
The official launch of a Joint Housing Protocol between KCC and the twelve District 
Council Local Housing Authorities took place in February 2018 to focus on the way in 
which homeless 16 and 17-year olds are supported. The new protocol embeds 
partnership working and joint assessments and there is a clear commitment for bed and 
breakfast accommodation not to be used for young people.  Additional work is being 
carried out with providers to ensure that a sufficient level of supported emergency 
accommodation is available for homeless young people.

Care Leavers
The number of Care Leavers increased from 1,513 in March 2018, to 1,603 in June 
2018.  The performance measure for Care Leavers who the Authority is in touch with 
who are in Education, Employment or Training remained at 66%, which is above the 
target of 65%. 

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC)
The number of UASC in care at the end of June 2018 was 216, which is a reduction of 
17 from March 2018. As at the 26th June 2018, 315 young people had been transferred 
to the responsibility of Other Local Authorities under the National Transfer Scheme for 
UASC which was launched in July 2016.  Kent County Council is currently below the 
threshold level for the Authority of 231 which was set under the National Transfer 
Scheme and calculated to be 0.07% of the 0-17 child population.

Page 97



(26)

Our Children in Care (including Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children)

Age Profile 

Age Group Sep 17 Dec 17 Mar 18 Jun 18

0 to 4 186 194 182 167

5 to 9 251 240 239 235

10 to 15 718 734 695 698

16 to 17 599 577 539 505

Total 1,754 1,745 1,655 1,605

Gender

Sep 17 Dec 17 Mar 18 Jun 18

Male 1,112 1,114 1,019 974

Female 642 631 636 631

Ethnicity

Sep 17 Dec 17 Mar 18 Jun 18

White 1,293 1,306 1,306 1,268

Mixed 92 87 85 85

Asian 38 48 41 35

Black 123 107 93 88

Other 208 197 130 129

Kent and Unaccompanied Asylum Seekers (UASC)

Status Sep 17 Dec 17 Mar 18 Jun 18

Kent Indigenous 1,403 1,423 1,422 1,389

UASC 351 322 233 216

Page 98



(27)

Key Performance Indicators 

Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted inspection 
judgements 

AMBER


Current: 91% Target: 92% Previous: 92%

Percentage of Early Years settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted 
inspection judgements (childcare on non-domestic premises)

AMBER


Current: 96% Target: 97% Previous: 97%

Percentage of 16-17 years olds Not in Education, Employment or Training 
(NEETs) 

AMBER


Current: 3.0% Target: 2.5% Previous: 2.9%

Percentage of 16-18 year olds who start an apprenticeship RED


Current: 4.8% (Est) Target: 6.2% Previous: 4.8%

Page 99



(28)

Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 
weeks

RED


Current: 49% Target: 65% Previous: 56%

Percentage of cases closed by Early Help Units with outcomes achieved GREEN


Current: 81% Target: 80% Previous: 79%

Percentage of pupils permanently excluded from school - rolling 12 months GREEN


Current: 0.02% Target: 0.03% Previous: 0.03%

Number of first time entrants to youth justice system - rolling 12 months GREEN


Current: 269 Target: 290 Previous: 279

Page 100



(29)

Percentage of children social care referrals that were repeat referrals within 
12 months

GREEN


Current: 25% Target: 25% Previous: 23%

Average number of days between becoming a child in care and moving in 
with an adoptive family - rolling 12 months

GREEN


Current: 328 Target: 426 Previous: 323

Percentage of children in care with 3 or more placements in the last 12 
months

AMBER


Current: 11% Target: 10% Previous: 11%

Percentage of children in care foster care in KCC Foster Care / Relatives and 
Friends placements (exc UASC)

AMBER




Current: 84% Target: 85% Previous: 85%

Page 101



(30)

Percentage of care leavers in education, employment or training (of those 
KCC is in touch with) 

GREEN


Current: 66% Target: 65% Previous: 66%

Activity indicators

Young people with SEN Statements or EHCPs per 1,000 population aged 0 to 19 

Number of pupils in Reception year (Kent state funded schools) 

Number of pupils in Year 7 (Kent state funded schools) 

Page 102



(31)

Percentage of Primary school applicants offered one of top three preferences

Percentage of Secondary school applicants offered one of top three preferences

Number of Early Help notifications processed by the Single Front Door

Number of open Early Help cases managed by Units

Page 103



(32)

Rate of SCS referrals per 10,000 population aged under 18 – rolling 12 months

SCS caseload per 10,000 child population – snapshot at quarter end

Rate of children with Child Protection Plans per 10,000 child population – snapshot at 
quarter end

Rate of indigenous Children in Care per 10,000 child population – snapshot at quarter end

Page 104



(33)

Rate of Children in Care (including UASC) per 10,000 child population – snapshot at 
quarter end

Number of other local authority children in care placed into Kent – snapshot at quarter end

Number of children in care placed with independent fostering agency – as at quarter end

Page 105



(34)

Adult Social Care 
Cabinet Member Graham Gibbens
Corporate Director Penny Southern

GREEN AMBER RED   
KPI Summary 3 1 1 1 4

Your Life, your well-being
Our vision is to help people to improve or maintain their wellbeing and to live as 
independently as possible. 'Your life, your wellbeing' details Kent County Council's 
vision for the future of adult social care over the next 5 years. As the demand for adult 
social care is increasing and finances are under pressure, expectations of adult social 
care are changing. 

We continue to modernise our approach to the delivery of adult social care services, 
and we are currently in the process of implementing a new operating model for services 
for older people. The new model will be aligned to health services within the emerging 
Local Care model, and will help focus our approach on prevention, enablement,  and 
maximising independence and choice.

All future support and services will be adhering to the following principles: 

 Promoting Wellbeing - Services which aim to prevent, delay or avoid people’s 
need for social care or health support, by helping people to manage their own 
health and wellbeing.

 Promoting Independence - Providing short-term support that aims to make the 
most of what people are able to do with themselves to reduce or delay their 
need for care and provide the best long-term outcome for people. They will have 
greater choice and control to lead healthier lives.

 Supporting Independence – Delivered through services for people who need 
ongoing support and aims to maintain wellbeing and self-sufficiency. The aim is 
to meet people’s needs, keep them safe and help them to live in their own 
homes, stay connected to their communities and avoid unnecessary stays in 
hospitals or care homes. For those needing long term care in a care home 
ensuring it is good quality, promotes independence and is safe.

In the new operating model for older people practitioners will sit in a one of several  
new functions aligned to the Vision, which are Promoting Wellbeing, Promoting 
Independence, Supporting Independence, Safeguarding, Quality Improvement and 
Social work. All functions will continue to work together as part of one team in a locality 
and all work will be managed via a local resource allocations process led by the senior 
manager in that locality.

As part of the new operating model a new Resource Management and Accountability 
(RMA) Function has been created to ensure that local service expenditure is well 
managed and this function will also undertake client finance related work, to allow 
frontline staff and managers to concentrate their efforts on what they are best skilled to 
do. 

Page 106



(35)

Performance Indicators
Of the 5 indicators measured for Adult Social Care, 1 stayed the same in the quarter 
and 4 declined, including two that were ahead of target. 

The percentage of contacts resolved at first point of contact increased in the quarter 
and was ahead of target at 75.1%.

The number of referrals to enablement decreased in the quarter. With an average of 
216 starts per week during the quarter, activity was 3.9% behind target. Referrals made 
to the externally commissioned provider Hilton are included within the these numbers. 

The overall picture of people being supported through the full range of enabling 
services is quite positive with a number of schemes commissioned by KCC, and the 
NHS such as Home First, Hilton’s Discharge to Assess, and Virgin Care. These 
schemes are delivering intermediate care and enabling services and have added 
additional capacity on top of the KCC in-house Kent Enablement at Home (KEaH) 
service. 

The percentage of clients still independent after enablement was above target at 72%. 
The introduction of Occupational Therapists within KEaH has resulted in more people 
receiving either a smaller package of care or no care following their completion of 
enablement. 

The number of admissions of older people aged 65 and over into residential and 
nursing home increased slightly this quarter and remains higher than target. Within this, 
residential care starts are slightly lower than expected with nursing care starts being 
higher than expected. There are a number of factors affecting this, including assisting 
people out of hospital, with the number of people experiencing a delayed transfer of 
care from hospital continuing to be a significant pressure.

The proportion of delayed discharges from hospital where KCC was responsible in the 
last quarter was within the 30% target at 26.6%. There were 14,405 bed day delays of 
delayed transfer from hospital in the quarter, equivalent to 13.0 per 100,000 of the 
population per day.

Safeguarding
In October 2015 the “Making Safeguarding Personal” approach was changed. This 
included changing Safeguarding Alerts to Safeguarding Enquiries. As a result of the 
changes we have seen a significant increase in the number of safeguarding concerns 
received with more activity now being captured. We expect to see the number of 
concerns raised level off as the new approach becomes embedded in practice.
 
Safeguarding improvement plans have been put in place to manage the increased 
cases activity and new cases are being dealt with more efficiently. Tighter controls of 
historic safeguarding cases open over 6 months have been put in place. 

Page 107



(36)

Service User Feedback

All local authorities carry out surveys of adult social care service users on an annual 
basis, as set out by Department of Health guidance. The survey results are used, along 
with other feedback gathered, to understand how we can make improvements to 
services. Results of some of the key survey questions areas are shown below, with 
national averages shown in brackets (where available).

 

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Service users who are extremely or 
very satisfied with their care and 
support

70%
(62%)

66%
(64%)

66%
(65%)

63.8%
(TBC)

Carers who are extremely or very 
satisfied with their care and support

41%
(41%) N/A* 35%

(39%) N/A*

Service users who have adequate or 
better control over their daily life

84%
(77%)

80%
(77%)

82%
(78%)

79.6%
(TBC)

Service users who find it easy to find 
information about services

78%
(74%)

75%
(74%)

75%
(74%)

73.7%
(TBC)

The proportion of carers who find it 
easy to find information about support

62%
(66%) N/A* 66%

(64%) N/A*

Service users who say they feel safe as 
they want 

73%
(69%)

71%
(69%)

74%
(70%)

68.8%
(TBC)

Service users who say that the services 
they receive help them feel safe and 
secure

84%
(85%)

85%
(85%)

82%
(86%)

79.5%
(TBC)

* The Carers survey is undertaken every other year

Page 108



(37)

Key Performance Indicators

Percentage of initial contacts resolved at first point of contact GREEN


Current: 75% Target: 70% Previous: 76%

Number of new clients referred to an enablement service AMBER


Current: 2,802 Target: 2,821 Previous: 2,956

Percentage of clients still independent after receiving an enablement service 
(Kent Enablement at Home)

GREEN


Current: 72% Target: 60% Previous: 75%

Number of admissions to permanent residential and nursing care for older 
people - rolling 12 months

RED


Current: 1,768 Target: 1,520 Previous: 1,653

Page 109



(38)

Percentage of Delayed Discharges from hospital with Adult Social Care 
responsible - weekly average (local data)

GREEN


Current: 27% Target: 30% Previous: 27%

Activity indicators

Number of older people supported in permanent residential care

  

Number of older people supported in permanent nursing care

Number of older people who receive domiciliary care

Page 110



(39)

Number of social care clients receiving a direct payment

Number of delayed transfers of care per 100,000 population age 18+, average per day 
(national data)

Number of learning disability clients in residential care

Number of people with a learning disability receiving a community service

Page 111



(40)

Number of people with mental health needs in residential care

Number of people with mental health needs receiving a community service

Number of Safeguarding concerns (initial contacts)

Number of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards applications

Page 112



(41)

Public Health 
Cabinet Member Graham Gibbons
Director Andrew Scott-Clark

GREEN AMBER RED   KPI Summary
4 1 1 1 3

The number of NHS Health Checks delivered has fallen below target in the 12 months 
to June 2018 following a focus on assuring an effective roll-out of a new IT system 
across Kent. Although the number of checks delivered decreased in the first quarter of 
2018/19 the take-up rate of the checks increased to 27% from 22% compared to the 
same period last year.

The Health Visiting Service completed more than 71,000 universal developmental 
reviews in the 12 months to June 2018. The proportion of antenatal contacts completed 
has increased, with improvements delivered in Dover and Gravesham. The service has 
begun the phased implementation of Baby Hubs across the county which are designed 
to make accessing multiple services easier for parents by co-locating services. The 
hubs will run in addition to the current clinic schedule to provide support and advise to 
families with children under the age of 1 years old and will include a schedule of 
monthly parenting education programmes which have been co-developed with Early 
Help.

The Health Visiting Service is working closely with Children’s Centres and 
breastfeeding peer supporters to provide infant feeding services across Kent. This 
includes breastfeeding drop-in clinics, home visits and peer support groups. 

100% of the 10,000 appointments requiring an urgent genito-urinary medicine (GUM) 
appointment in Kent were offered within 48 hours. A new Kent Sexual Health Needs 
Assessment has been published and commissioners will look to embed the findings 
into services, including increasing online sexual health services.

The percentage of successful completion of drug and alcohol treatment increased in 
the quarter and the target was achieved.

The Live Well Kent Service is a jointly commissioned KCC and CCG mental wellbeing 
service delivered across Kent which aims to provide a holistic offer of support for 
residents with common, or severe and enduring, mental health diagnoses. A key metric 
for the providers is the NHS Friends and Family Test around levels of satisfaction with 
the services, and in the 3 months ending in June 2018, 98% indicated that they would 
recommend the service to family, friends or someone in a similar situation.

In the quarter to June 2018 the One You Kent Campaign received over 13,000 page 
views of the website, the Release the Pressure campaign received over 5,000 page 
views and the Sexual Health pages received over 62,000 views in a continuation of the 
PHE Campaign ‘Protect against STIs’ launched in January. 

Page 113



(42)

Key Performance Indicators

Number of eligible people receiving an NHS Health Check - rolling 12 months AMBER


Current: 38,021 Target: 41,600 Previous: 41,677

Number of mandated universal checks delivered by the health visiting service 
– rolling 12 months

GREEN
 

 Current: 71,287 Target: 65,000 Previous: 71,495

Proportion of clients accessing GUM offered an appointment to be seen 
within 48 hours

GREEN


Current: 100% Target: 90% Previous: 100%

Successful completion of drug and alcohol treatment – rolling 12 months GREEN


Current: 26% Target: 28% Previous: 25%

Page 114



(43)

Percentage of Live Well clients who would recommend the service to family, 
friends or someone in a similar situation in the most deprived quintiles.

GREEN


Current: 98% Target: 90% Previous: 99%

Activity indicators

Life expectancy gap in years between least and most deprived areas 

Number of attendances at KCC commissioned Sexual Health Clinics

Number of adults accessing structured Substance Misuse Treatment Services

Page 115



(44)

Corporate Risk Register – Overview

The table below shows the number of Corporate Risks in each risk level (based on the 
risk score). The Target risk level is the expected risk level following further 
management action.  Since the last quarter, one risk score has been amended. There 
are no new risks added to the register. 

Low Risk Medium 
Risk High Risk

Current risk level 0 8 10

Target risk level 3 15 0

  
CHANGES TO RISK RATINGS

CRR0042 – post-Brexit border systems and infrastructure arrangements

Since the last report the risk rating has been increased from 15 (Amber) to 20 (High).  A 
comprehensive report outlining the Council’s position regarding this topic and other 
Brexit-related issues was presented to County Council in July.  The Council continues 
to engage in key working groups with partners and central government departments 
focusing on preparedness in case of a ‘no-deal’ situation in March 2019. 

More details of this risk and associated mitigating actions are detailed within Kent 
County Council’s Corporate Risk Register.

MITIGATING ACTIONS

Updates have been provided for 7 actions to mitigate elements of Corporate Risks that 
were due for completion or review up to the end of June 2018, together with updates 
for 6 actions due for completion or review by September 2018.  These are summarised 
below.

Due Date for Completion Actions 
Completed/ 

Closed

Actions 
Outstanding or 

Partially complete

Regular 
Review

June 2018 1 5 1

July 2018 and beyond 2 1 3

Page 116



(45)

Mitigating actions during this period are summarised below:

Safeguarding – protecting vulnerable adults
Further independent audits of case files across all client categories to complement 
internal reviews and audits will take place during February/March 2019. Testing of the 
new safeguarding operating model is progressing, with evaluation completed by mid-
August 2018.

Civil Contingencies and Resilience – The updated Duty and Recovery rota will be 
introduced in early September 2018 supported by a programme of training and a re-
launched Duty and Recovery Director Handbook.  A Tactical Manager training 
programme is being developed and all new Tactical Managers will be expected to 
undertake a personal resilience questionnaire.

Integration of Early Help and Preventative Services and Specialist Children’s Services 
to improve outcomes and manage demand – The pilots have now been completed and 
analysis of the impact is being undertaken, with a summary of each of the pilots’ 
outcomes being produced.  Pilot leads and service managers will now consider the 
findings in detail and test out some of the next steps.

Potential implications associated with significant migration into Kent – There have been 
no further bulk placements into Kent.  Two roundtable meetings with 6 of the largest 
placing authorities have taken place with discussions focussing on deterring 
placements and ensuring good communication/handover of services for those 
placements already here.  Kent and Medway Public Health Observatory are 
undertaking some analysis, the findings to be reported to Kent Council Leaders and 
Policy & Resources Cabinet Committee in due course.

Resourcing implications arising from increasing complex adult social care need – 
Implementation of Adult Social Care Strategy projects delivering a whole pathway 
transformation are progressing, including the establishment of a new business delivery 
unit to oversee purchasing work being undertaken.

Cyber-attack threats – A cyber incident response policy to strengthen responsibilities 
and accountabilities across the Authority has undergone initial review and will be 
subject to further work ahead of entering a wider review process.  Proposals have been 
put to Cantium Business Solutions to introduce regular reporting of vulnerabilities and 
remediation plans, as well as quarterly status reports.

Opportunities and risks associated with alternative service delivery models – A review 
of KCC company governance and ownership has been undertaken.  The Constitution 
has been reviewed and reported to County Council in July 2018.

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 119

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 July 2018
	5 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - July 2018
	6 Quarterly Performance Report, Quarter 1, 2018/19
	8 Exempt Minute of the meeting held on 16 July 2018



